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VIA OVERNIGHT DELIVERY

Mr. Walter D' Haescleer =11

Florida Public Service Commission ﬁ 8l ?ﬁ:} -I

Division of Communications

2540 Shumard Oak Blvd.

Tallahassce, FL 32399-0850

Re:

Dear D'Haescleer:

On behalf of International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Com (“IE Com”),
enclosed for filing are an original and six (6) copies of IE Com’s Application for Authonty to
provide Interexchange Telecommunications Service within the State of Florida.

Also enclosed is a check in the amount of $250.00 to cover the application filing fee.

Please date-stamp the enclosed extra copy of this filing and retum it in the self-addressed,
postage-paid envelope provided. Should you have questions regarding this filing, please do not
hesitate 1o contact us.

a - Very truly yours,
roceived with fiknd
ﬁ}hr:zdﬂlu Fiscal 10"'5‘:::'." 7* . ’?’W
FIAR with proof of dopost

forwarsed CHOOK. Catherine Wang

125lﬁ of person who Maria L. Cattafesia

Counsel for International Exchange
Communications, Inc. &/b/a IE Com

Enclosures W
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cc:  Charles G. Taylor, Jr. EPR R
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BEFORE THE
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

International Exchange
Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Com

e et T T i g Tt

Request for Authority to Provide Docket No. 45123211
Interexchange Telecommunications
Service within the State of Florida

APPLICATION FORM

for
AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE INTEREXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS
SERVICE WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA

DOCUMENT KU'MHBER-DATE
| 1734 ocT2I R
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9. If incorporated, please give:

(a)  Proof from the Florida Secretary of State that the applicant has authority to
operate in Florida.

Applicant's Certificate of Authority to Transact Business in Florida
is attached as Exhibit 1.

Corporation charter number: F98000002337
(b)  Name and address of the company's Florida registered agent.
HIQ Corporate Services, Inc.
529 East Park Avenue
Tallahasse, FL 32301

(¢)  Provide proof of compliance with the fictitious name statute (Chapter 863.09
FS), if applicable.

Please See Exhibit 2
Fictitious name registration number: G98147900013

(d)  Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders
have previously been:

(1) adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompeternt, or found guilty of any felony
or of any crime, or whether such actions may result from pending

proceedings.
No.

(2)  officer, director, partner, or stockholder in any other Florida centificated

telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. If
no longer associated with company, give reason why not.

No.

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
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(d)

Complaints/Inguiries from customers:

IE Com maintains a toll free number, 1-888-551-0597, through
which IE Com customers can reach IE ( om's Customer Service
Department 24 hours a day, seven days a week for assistance with all
products or billing inquiries, changes or additions to their accounts
and trouble reports or service complaints.,

11.  List the states in which the applicant:|

(a)

()

(c)

(d)

(e)

n

Has operated as an interexchange carrier.

California, Connecticut, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan, New
Jersey, New York and Texas.

Has applications pending to be certificated as an intcrexchange carrier.
Georgia, Ilinois and Pennsylvania.
It certificated to operate as an interexchange carrier.

Californla, Connecticut, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan, New
Jersey, New York and Texas.

Has been denied authority to operate as an interexchange carrier and the
circumstances involved.

None.

Has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications
statutes and the circumstances involved.

None.
Has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange carrier,
local exchange company, or other telecommunications entity and the
circumstances involved.

None.

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.




12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

What services will the applicant offer to other certificated elephone companies:

( ) Facilities () Operators
( ) Billing and Collection () Sales

() Maintenance

(X)  Other: Resold interexchange services

Do you have a marketing program?

IE Com has not yet adopted a marketing strategy for Florida, thus it does
not have a finalized marketing program. However, only employees of IE
Com will be marketing or selling IE Com’s services.

Will your marketing program:

Pay commissions?

Offer sales franchises?

Offer multi-level sales incentives?
Offer other sal 's incentives?

=,
T T o ot

Explain any of the offers checked in question 14 (to whom, what amount, type of
franchise, etc.).

Not applicable.

Who will receive the bills for your services (check all that apply)?

(X) Residential Customers (X) Business Customers

() PATS Providers () PATS Station End-Users
() Hotels and Motels () Hotel and Motel Guests

( )  Universities ( )  Univ. Dormitory Residents
() Other,

Please provide the following (if applicable):

(a)  Will the name of your company appear on the bill for your services and, if not,
who will the billed party contact to ask questions about the bill (provide namz
and phone number) and how is this information provided?

IE Com's company name will appear on customer bills. Customers
may call IE Com’'s toll-free number, 1-888-551-0597, for customer

service Inquires.

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
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(b)  Name and address of the firm who will bill for your services.

IE Com customers in Florida will be billed by Operator Assistance
Network ("OAN") In conjunction with the billing and collection
contracts with the customer’s local exchange company, primarily

Bell South.

OAN's address Ist OAN Services, Inc.
9255 Corbin Street
Northridge, CA 91324

18.  Please provide all available documentation demonstrating that the applicant has the
following capabilities to provide interexchange telecommunications service in Florida.

A.  Financial capability.
Regarding the showing of financial capability, the following applies:
The application ghould contain the applicant’s financial statements, including:
1. the balance sheet
2. income statement
3 statement of retained earnings for the most recent 3 years.
If available, the financial statements should be audited financial statements.
If the applicant does not have audited financial statements, it shall be so stated.
The unaudited financial statements should then be signed by the applicant's
chief executive officer and chief financial officer. The signatures should affirm
that the financial statements are true and correct.
IE Com intends to rely on the financial resources of its parent Pacific Gateway
Exchange, Inc. ("PGE"). PGE's SEC Form 10-K for the year ended December

31, 1998 and its SEC Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998 is
attached as Exhibit 3.

B. Managerial capability.
Please see Exhibit 4.
C. Technical capability.

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24 471 and 25-24.473.
-8 -




Please see Exhibit 4.

19.  Please submit the proposed tariff under which the company plans to begin operation.
Use the format required by Commission Rule 25-24.485 (example enclosed).

Pleas» see Exhibit 5.

20.  The applicant will provide the following interexchange carrier services (check all that
apply):

() MTS with distance sensitive per minute rates

)  Method of access is FGA
)  Method of access is FGB
)  Method of access is FGD
) Method of access is 800

S

()  MTS with route specific rates per minute

)  Method of access is FGA
)  Method of access is FGB
)  Method of access is FGD
)  Method of access is B0D

e —

(X) MTS with statewide flat rates per minute (i.e., not distance sensitive)
() Method of access is FGA
() Method of access is FGB
(X) Method of access is FGD
(X) Method of access is 800
() MTS for pay telephone service providers
( ) Block-of-time calling plan (Reach Out Florida, Ring America, etc.)
(X) 800 Service (twll free)
() WATS-type Service (bulk or volume discount)

( ) Method of access is via dedicated facilities
() Method of access is via switched facilities

() Private Line Services (channel services) (i.e., 1.544 mbs., D5-3, eic.)

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
Oy




(X) Travel Service

() Method of access is 950
(X) Method of access is 800

() 900 Service
()  Operator Services
Available to presubscribed customers

()

( )  Available to non-presubscribed customers (i.e., to patrons of hotels,
students in universities, patients in hospitals)

( )  Available to inmates

Services included are:

Station assistance
Person-to-Person assistance
Directory assistance
Operator verify and interrupt
Conference calling

21.  What does the end-user dial for each of the interexchange carrier services that were
checked in services included (above)?

g — —
T T T e

The end user dials 14+ or 1010597,
22. Other:

Applicant hereby requests a walver from Rule 25-4.017, F.A.C., requiring
use of the Uniform System of Accounts for Telecommunications Companies
("USOA"). Applicant request permission to utilize Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles ("GAAP").

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
-10-




REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: [ understand that all telephone companies
must pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of |5 of on¢ percent of its gross
operating revenue derived from intrastate business. Regardless of the gross operating
revenue of a company, a minimum annual assessment fee of $50 is required.

GROSS RECEIPTS TAX: | understand that all telephone companies must pay a
gross receipts tax of fwo and one-half percent on all intra and interstate business.

SALES TAX: I understand that a seven percent sales tax must be paid on intra and
interstate revenues.

APPLICATION FEE: A non-refundable application fec of $250.00 must be
submitted with the application.

RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING OF RULES: [ acknowledge receipt and
understanding of the Florida Public Service Commission's Rules and Orders relating 1o
my provision of interexchange telephone service in Florida. | also understand that it is
my responsibility to comply with all current and future Commission requirements
regarding interexchange telephone service.

ACCURACY OF APPLICATION: By my signature below, I, the undersigned owner
or officer of the named utility in the application, attest to the accuracy of the
information contained in this application and associated attachments. [ have read the
foregoing and declare that, to the best of my kaowledge and belief, the information is a
true and correct statement.

Further, | am aware that, pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes,
"Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to mislead
a public servant In the performance of his official duty shall be guilty of a
mammmmumm 775.082 and
s. 775-083."

UTILITY OFFICIAL; ~ _aawden/ /] %J/ /2 /4p
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International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Com
Telephone: (650) 375-6700
Facsimile: (650) 375-6799

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos, 25-24.471 and 25-24.473,
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CERTIFICATE TRANSFER STATEMENT
Not Applicable, IE Tom is applying for original authority.
I, (TYPE NAME) ,(TITLE)

, of (NAME OF COMPANY)

, and current holder of certificate

number , have reviewed this application and join in the petitioner’s

request for a transfer of the above-mentioned certificate,

VTILITY OFFICIAL;
Signature Date

Title Telephone Nitmber

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473,
-12-




CUSTOMER DEPOSITS AND ADVANCE PAYMENTS

A statement of how the Comunission can be assured of the security of the customer's
deposits and advance payments may be responded to in one of the following ways (applicant,
please check one):

0§  The applicant will not collect deposits nor will it collect payments for service
more than one month in advance.

()  The applicant will file with the Commission and maintain a surety bond in an
amount equal to the current balance of deposits and advance payments in excess
of one month, (Bond must accompany applicadon.)

IE Com does not require customer deposits.

UTILITY. OFFICIAL; m,ﬁﬁidqi /4
Signature -i‘— Date

Cobmuses G TAMion
Hame |
SvP-lwry Mur [ev
Tiele
International Excharge Communications, Inc. 4/b/a IE Com
Telephone: (650) 375-6700
Facsimille: (650) 375-6799

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
«-13-
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INTRASTATE NETWORK
Not Applicable
1. POP: Addresses where located, and indicate if owned or leased.
1) 2)
3) 4)

2. SWITCHES: Addresses where located, by type of switch, and indicate if owned or

leased.
) 2)
J3) 4)

3. TRANSMISSION FACILITIES: POP-10-POP facilities by type of facilities
(microwave, fiber, copper, satellite, etc.) and indicate if owned or leased.

POP-10-POP IYPE OWNERSHIP

1)
2)

4. ORIGINATING SERVICE: Please provide the list of exchanges where you are

proposing to provide originating service within thirty (30) days after the effective date
of the certificate (Appendix D).

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
-14 -




INTRASTATE NETWORK (continued)

5. TRAFFIC RESTRICTIONS: Please explain how the applicant will comply with the
EAEA requiremencs contained in Commission Rule 25-24.471(4)(a) (copy enclosed).

IE Com initially proposes to provide interexchange service on a resale basis. The
certificated carriers from which IE Com will purchase services for resale will be

responsible for complying with Commission Rule 25-24.471(4)(a).

6. CURRENT FLORIDA INTRASTATE SERVICES: Applicant has ( ) or has not (X)
previously provided intrastate telecommunications in Florida. If the answer is has,
fully describe the following:

a) What services have been provided and when did these services begin?

b) If the services are not currently offered, when were they discontinued?

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
P -




- L1

INTRASTATE NETWORK (continued)

Signature Date
Name

Tk

International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Com
Telephone: (650) 375-6700

Facsimile: (650) 3756799

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
+3f =
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FLORIDA TELEPHONE EXCHANGFS AND EAS ROUTES

Describe the service area in which you hold your:elf out to provide service by
telephone company exchange. If all services listed in yo: r tariff are not offered at all

locations, so indicaie.

In an effort to assist you, attached is a list of major exchanges in Florida showing the
small exchanges with which each has extended area servics (EAS).

Extended Service
Arca with _Thezs Exchanges

PENSACOLA: Cantonment, Gulf Breeze
Pace, Milton, Holley-Navarre.

PANAMA CITY: L ynn Haven, Panama City Beach,
Y oungstown-Fountain and Tyndall
AFB.

TALLAHASSEE: C awfordville, Havana, Monticello,
P:nacea, Sopchoppy and St. Marks.

JACKSONVILLE: Baldwin, Ft. George, Jacksonville
Be ich, Callahan, Maxville,
Middieburg, Orange Park, Ponte Vedra
and Julington.

GAINESVILLE: Alachua, Archer, Brooker, Hawthome,
High Springs, Melrose, Micanopy,
Newberry and Waldo.

OCALA: Bellcview, Citra, Dunnellon, Forest
Lady Lake (B21), McIntosh, Oklawaha,
Orange Springs, Salt Springs and Silver
Springs Shores.

DAYTONA BEACH: New Smyma Beach.

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.

-17 -




FLORIDA TELEPHONE EXCHANGES AND EAS ROUTES (continued)

TAMPA: Central None
East Plant City
North Zephyrhills
South Palmetto
West Clearwater

CLEARWATER: St. Petersburg, Tampa-West and
Tarpon Springs.

ST. PETERSBURG: Clearwater.

LAKELAND: Bartow, Mulberry, Plant City, Polk
City and Winter Haven.

ORLANDO: Apopka, East Orange, Lake Buena

Vista, Oviedo, Windermere, Winter
Garden, Winter Park, Montverde,
Reedy Creek and Oviedo-Winter

Springs.

WINTER PARK: Aopoka, East Orange, Lake Buena
Vista, Orlando, Oviedo, Sanford,
Windermere, Winter Garden,
Oviedo-Winter Springs Reedy Creek,

Geneva and Montverde.

TITUSVILLE: Cocoa and Cocoa Beach.

COCOA: Cocoa Beach, Eau Gallie, M 'bourne
and Titusville.

MELBOURNE: Cocoa, Cocoa Beach, Eau Gallie and
Sebastian.

SARASOTA: Rradenton, Myakka and Venice.

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
-18 -




FLORIDA TELEPHONE EXCHANGES AND EAS ROUTES (continued)

FT. MYERS: Cape Coral, Ft. Myers Beach, North
Cape Coral, North Ft. Myers, Pine
Island, Lehigh Acres and
Sanibel-Captiva Islands

NAPLES: Marco Island and North Naples.

WEST PALM BEACH: Boyston Beach and Jupiter.

POMPANO BEACH: Boca Raton, Coral Springs, Deerfield
Beach and Fi. Lauderdale

FT. LAUDERDALE: Coral Springs, Deerfield Beach,
Hollywood and Pompano Beach.

HOLLYWQCOD: Ft. Lauderdale and North Dade.

NORTH DADE: Hollywood, Miami and Perrine.

MIAMI: Homestead, North Dade and Perrine.

IE Com seeks authority to resell interexchange telecommunications services
throughout the State of Florida at the rates identified in its proposed tarilT attached

hereto as Exhibit 4.

UTILITY OFFICIAL:

FORM PSC/CMU 131 (3/96)

Sh- Jur!, (e fk/

Tidde
International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a [E Com

Telephone: (650) 375-6700
Facsimile: (650) 375-6799

Required by Commission Rule Nos, 25-24.471 and 25-24.473,

-19-




EXHIBIT 1
EXHIBIT 2
EXHIBIT 3
EXHIBIT 4

EXHIBIT 5

EXHIBITS
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY TO TRANSACT BUSINESS
PROOF OF COMPLIANCE WITH FICTI110US NAME STATUTE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MANAGERIAL AND TECHNICAL QUALIFICATIONS
PROPOSED TARIFF




EXHIBIT 1
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY TO TRANSACT BUSINESS




L.k

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF STATE
Sandra B. Mortham

Secretary of State
April 23, 1998

UCC FILING & SEARCH SERVICES

Qualification documents for INTERNATIONAL EXCHANGE
COMMUNICATIONS, INC. were filed on 23, 1908 and assigned document
number F98000002337. Please refer to this number whenever corresponding
with this office.

Your corporation is now qualified and authorized to transact business in Florida
as of the file date.

A corporation annual report will be due this office between January 1 and 1
mmmmmwmdmmm. AFoZmIEnm.r
Identification (FEI) number will be required before this report can be filed. If you

do not have an FEl number, please NOW with the Intemal
Revenue by 1-800-829-3676 and requesting form SS-4.

Please be aware i the co address changes, it is the responsibility of the
corporation to notify this ;

Should have any this matter, please telephone (850)
4&?-&0931'?““ Foreign ax Lien Section.

Jennifer Sindt

Division of Corporations Letter Number: 098A00022151

Division of Corporations - P.O. BOX 6327 -Tallahassee, Florida 32314



APPLICATION BY FOREIGN CORPORATION FOR AUTHORIZATION
TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN FLORIDA

IN COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 607.1503, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE FOLLOWING IS SUBMITTED TO
REGISTER A FOREIGN CORPORATION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF FLGRIDA:

|. _INTERNATIONAL EXCHANGE COMMUNICATIDNS, INC.

(Name of corporation: must include the word “INCORPORATED", “COMPANY™, "CORPORATION"™ or words or abbreviations

of like import in language as will clearly indicate that it is a corporation instead of & natural person or partnership if not so
contained in the name at present.)

2. _DELAWARE . 3. $4-3292374
(State or country under the law of which it is incorporated) (FEI number, if applicable)
4. 81277 5, PERPETUAL
(Date of Incorporation)

{Dwration: Year corp. will cease to exist or

“perpetual”)
6, _UPONACCEPTANCE

(Date first transacted business in Florida. (SEE SECTIONS 607.1501, 607.1502, AND 817155, F 5. gE
7. 533 AIRPORT BOULEVARD, SUITE 808 =

“';F

¥

a3

BURLINGAME CA 94010

dyud
b 304

{Current mailing address)
8. TO CONDUCT RETAIL COMMUMNICATIONS S8ERVICES
(Purpose(s) of corporation authorized in home state or country to be carried out in the state of Florida)

9. Name and street address of Florida registered agent: (P.O. Box or Mail Drop Box NOT acceptable)
Name: HIQ CORPORATE SERVICES, INC.

whElHd CR
o

R TLH

Office Address: EAST PARK AVENUE

TALLAHASSEF . Florida, 32301

{Zip Code)

10. Registered agent's acceptance:

Having been named as registered agent and 1o accept service of process for the above stated corporation at the
place designated in this application, I hereby accept the appoiniment as registered agent and agree to act in this

capacity. I further agree to comply with the provisions of all statutes relative to the proper and complete performance
of my durties, and | am familiar with and the obligations o,

sition as registered agent.
Q G?’ATI ES, INC,, BY: D. MONIODIS, SECRET ARY
. o
Clame £ 1Ninids

(Registered agent's signature)

I1. Attached is a certificate of existence duly authenticated, not more than 90 days prior to delivery of this
application to the Department of State, by the Secretary of State or other official having custody of
corporate records in the jurisdiction under the law of which it is incorporated.

ATF FLldiler )




I2. Names and addresses of officers and/or directors: (Street address ONLY- P. O, Box NOT acceptable)
A. DIRECTORS (Street address only- P. O. Box NOT acceptable)

Chairman: SEEATTACHED
£ idress:

Vice Chairman;
Address:

Director:
Address:

Director:

Address:

B. OFFICERS (Street address only- P. O, Box NOT acceptable)

President: SEEATTACHED 2 Eﬁ
Address: 22
™r -l1, ; T
L o 2=
Vice President: - :'“'-J-“:
Address: = E
L -
Secretary:
Address:
Treasurer:
Address:

NOTE: If necessary, you may attach an addendum to the application listing additional officers and/or directors.

~
13.
t!im%w:mw listed in number 12 of the application)

|4, HOWARD-NESHOWITE -PRESIDENT GAIL (s PANTON | SECEETARY
(Typed or printed name and capacity of person signing application)

BTF FLATITGF 4




INTERNATIONAL EXCHANGE COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

LIST OF OFFICERS & DIRECTORS

Howard Neckowitz, President

Gail Granton, VP, Secretary
& Treasurer

Howard Neckowitz

Gall Granton

53) Airport Boulevard Burlingame CA 94010

233 Alrport Boulevard Burlingame CA 94010

hh:E Hd EZ ¥V BE

333 Alrport Boulevard Burliagame CA 94010

533 Airport Boulevard Burlingame CA 94010
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EXHIBIT 2
PROOF OF COMPLIANCE WITH FICTITIOUS NAME STATUTE




May 27, 1998

| ECOM
533 AIRPORT BLVD., SUITE 505
BURLINGAME, CA 94010

Subject: | E COM
REGISTRATION NUMBER: G98147900013
This will the of the above fictitious name istration which

was registered on 27, 1988. This registration gives no to ownership
of the name.

Each fictitious name must be renewed every five years between

July 1 and December 31 of the expiration year to maintain reg tion., Three
mmmnpﬂnrmﬂuuuﬂmﬁmdm:mdmﬂﬁlbumﬂad.

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BUSINESS TO NOTIFY THIS OFFICE IN
WRITING IF THEIR MAILING ADDRESS CHANGES. Whenever commesponding

please provide assigned Registration Number.

Should you have any questions regarding this matter you may contact our office
at (850) 488-9000.

Reinstatement Section
Division of Corporations Letter No. 998A00020627

Division of Corporations - P.O. BOX 6327 -Tallahassee, Florida 32314




APPLICATION FOR
REGISTRATION OF FICTITIOUS NAME

-t T E CoM
: Foripus Meme 10 be Regeiersd F l L E D
2 533 AIRPORT BLVD, SUTTE 505 GBMAY 27 PHI2: 01
BURL mﬁ SECRoARY Ur STAT
i 94010 TALUARASSEE. FLORIOA
Gty Sims Ip Coce

4. Flenida County of principal piace of business: __________
LEDN

4 FEI Number: ___ 4=3292374

This space lor office use only

kmﬁﬂﬂmﬁu“!hﬂmmﬂmﬂm

1 2.
(] Flrst ML (¥ Firnt [*F]
Adcewad aiirags
= Seate Lo Cone oy S Lo Coce
SS# - . SS# - -

Erary Hame
%33 AIRFORT BLVD, SUTTE 505
BUMETRGAME CA 94010 o
Ciry e =y Stale Lip Cade
m-wwﬁﬁM'T Florida Registration Number
FEI Number: 94-3292374 FEI Number:
[0 Appilied for O Not Applicable I Applied for O Not Applicable

Hw-}mlW.mhﬂﬂ““ﬂ“nh“tﬂ.muﬂﬂmmwm
um-mrﬂm.IHW“HHmmmmmldhm_mmuMuﬂn.
W-whuﬂriﬂ.mﬂ“mumﬂﬂﬂhWamﬂdh—_-wlmm-
mmuMwﬂmﬁmmMulmmmwmmwm

-_r\i'a GE&‘_\. Ey—_— EJEI ff
Sqgrature of Crresr Date
oo \N (150 -33S-UF2E  Prons Number

FOR CANCELLATION COMPLETE SECTION 4 ONLY:
FOR FICTITIOUS NAME OR OWNERSHIP CHANGE COMPLETE SECTIONS 1 THROUGH &

| (we) the undarsigned. hereby cancel the fictitious name
. which was registered on and was assigned

registration number

Segratgre ot O Ceatw l-m.n-:;-:\;-- ' Cona

| Mark the applicable boxes O Cenificate of Status — $10 Dmn-uco}{r-m

FILING FEE: 850

Note: Acknowledgements/certificates will ba sent to the address in Section 1 only. CR4E-D01 (5/9€)




EXHIBIT 3

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

{
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED June 30, 1998
COMMISSION FILE NUMBER 000-21043

PACIEIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE. INC,
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

Delaware M-3134065
(State of Other Jurisdiction (IRS Employer
of Incorporation or Organization) Identification Number)

533 Airport Blvd, Suite 505, Burlingame, California, 94010
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Item 1. Financial Statements

PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands)
(Unandiied)
June 30, December 31,
1998 1997
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 31,265 5 43,850
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtfil accounts
of $3,314 in 1998 and $2,230 in 1997 83,109 62,313
Accounts receivable, related party - -
Prepaid expenses ET1 511
Other current assets . 1,769
Total curient assets 115,246 108,443
Property and equipment, net 71,0858 61,431
Investment in companies 5,149 184
Deposits and other asscts %?Dl 1,557
Total assets : 1

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 3 98,74 § 87,949
Accroed liabilities 3,974 3.1
Income taxes payable B59 1,491
Other liabilities 1461 1,871

Total liabilities 106,028 93 044
Commitments and contingencies (Note 6).

Stockbolders' Equity:
Preferred stock, $.0001 par value, authorized

5,000,000 shares, no shares . - -
Common stock, $.0001 par value, 70,000,000 shares,

issued 19,288,246 shares, outstanding 19,144,686 shares

in 1998 and issued 19,216,710 shares, outstanding 19,073,130

shares in 1997 2 1
Additional paid in capital 63,049 60,849
Deferred compensation-restricted stock .917 (4,134)
Foreign currency translation &0 2
Retained eamnings 29,371 10,254
Commaon stock held in treasury, at cost

(143,560 shares in 1998 and 1997) (400) {400y

Total stockholders’ equity 88,155 76
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 3 194,183 171,617

See Accompanying Notes 1o Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements




PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except net income per share)

Revenues - related party
Total revenues
Con of long distance services
Cross margin
Selling, general and administrative sxpenses

Total operating expenses
Opersting income
Orher (income) expense, net
Interest (income) expense, ret
Income before income taxes
Provision for income laxes
Net income

Met income per share, basic
Met income per share, diluted

Thres Months Six Moaths
Ended June 30, Ended Juze),
1558 1997 1998 1997

3 109952 § 59404 % 215014 3 106,928

- 3,182 a 7709

109,952 61,186 215,024 114,637

1 51,947 182,192 95,108

17,001 11,219 31832 19,529

729 5,618 14,252 9,443

2,146 1,267 4,109 2,120

9436 6,085 18,961 11,563

7,543 438 13,4871 7,966
A6 (168) 594 (168)
(536) (327 (1,169) (1013)

1425 5,029 14,446 9,148

2,740 [ 5,185 3,645
S Sl L

5 026 $ 016 3 049 8 0.29
e ——— T R N ] ST T T S T T e W

H 025 016 § 046 3 028
e —— e ——l, | LS —— T TS e e e Rl S

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements.




PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC,

CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(ia thousands)
Six Months
Ended June 30,
1998 1997
{Unaudited)
Operating Activities:
Net income s 9261 % 5,504
Adjustments to nel income:
Depreciation 4,108 2,055
Stock compensation expense 304 (mn
Bad debts provision 1,204 1,499
Equity in net loss of affilisted comp.nies 152 .
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (22,110) (11,359)
Accounts receivable, related party - 576
Prepaid expenses (361) (36)
Depesits and other assets 953 (858)
Accounts payable 10,807 7,803
Accrued lisbilities 24) 401
Federal income taxes payable (recoverable) (554) (2,247)
Other lisbilities 409 243
Net cash used in operating sctivities 4414 350
Investing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (13,988) (12,049)
Purchase of investment (3314) pr¥]
Net cash used in investing activities (17,302) (21,827
Flasncing Activitles:
Exercise of stock options 360 183
Other 57 (18)
Net cash provided by financing activifies 303 108
Net decrease in cash and cash (12,585) (18,188)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 43,850 45563

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

] JIE 5 11&15

Supplemental data for non-cash investing

and financing activities:

Commaon stock issued o investee b 1 1,800 5

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Condensed Financial Staternents.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1) GENERAL

The satements included berein are unsudited aod have been propared in accordance with
(“SEC™) regulations. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements

normal and recusTing nature) that are necessary 1o present fairly the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows for the interim periods. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annual
repart on Form 10-K of Pacific Gatewny Exchange, Inc. (the “Company™ or “Pacific Gatewny™) for the year
ended December 31, 1997. The results for the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 1998 wre not
necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for future periods.

In sccordance with American Instituie of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position 98-1
“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use™, during the first quarter
of 1998, the Company began capitalizing costs associated with developing computer software for internal use.

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 1998 financial statement
presentation.

(2) ACOUISITIONS

On Februay 13, 1998, the Company purchased of 16.6% of Ekonom S.A. de C.V., 3 Mexican multimedia
company existing under the laws of the United Mexican States, for $3,300,000 in cash and $1,800,000 in Pacific
Gateway's stock. The Company's investment in Ekonom is sccounted for under the cost method.

(3) EARNINGS PER SHARE
Income Shares Per-Share
{in thousands, except per share amounts) (Numerstor) (Denominator) Amount
Three Months Ended June 30, 1998
Basic EPS:
Income available to common sockholders § 48385 19,060 $ 026
Effect of stock-based competisation ' B74
Diluted EPS 3 4503 19,054 ¥ 015
Three Monoths Ended June 30, 1997
Basic EPS:
Income available to common stockholdens $ 1042 18,938 $ 016
Effect of stock-based compensation 611
Diluted EPS B L L A . 1A [
Six Months Ended June 30, 1998
Basic EPS:
Income available 1o common stockholders 5 5.261 19,041 3 049
Effect of stock-based compensstion 890
Diluted EPS — 5 9361 9001 — Y04
Sls Moanths Ended June 30, 1997
Basic EPS:
Income availabie to common stockbolders 3 5504 18,938 5029
Effect of stock-based compensation 675

Diluted EFS LR 19,813 038




(4) COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

In June 1997, hFﬁ.SBumdSFASHn 130, wwm SFAS No. 130

defined includes all changes in equity (net assets) during a period from noo-owner sources. Examples of itemns to
be included in comprehensive income, which are excluded from net income, include foreign currency translation
adjustments. In accordance with the adoption of SFAS No. 130, total other comprebensive income consisted of
foreign currency translation totaling spproximately $32,000 and 358,000 for the three. and six-mooth period
ending June 30, 1998 respectivesy.

(5) NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 1997, the FASB issued SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise end
Related Information”, This statement establishes standards for the way companies report information sbout
mhmm:ﬁm. It also establishes standards for related disclosures about

the

The Company currently has operating subsidiaries in foreign locations including U K., New Zealand and
Russia. The Company's operstions are subject to certain risks, such as changes ia foreign government regulations
and telecommunications standards, licensing requirements, tariffs, taxes and other trade barriers, as well as
political and economuc instability. Subsequent to June 30, 1998, the Company’s Russian subsidiary, Rusieloet,
was notified by the Russian local tax suthorities of a potential local tax lisbility. The management of Rusteloet

|
%
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Item 2: Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This Quanerly Report contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section
27A of the Secunties Act of 193], as amended, and Section 21E of the Secunties Exchangs Actof 1934, s
amended, including statements regarding expecied future revenus from delayed proportional return traffic
from [oreign parmers pursuant to certaic operating agreements. Forward-looking statements are statements
other than historical information or statements of current condinon. Some forward-locking stements may
be identified by use of terms such as “believes,” “snticipates,” “plans,” “intends™ or “expects.” These
forward-looking statements relate 1o the plans, objectives and expectations of Pacific Gateway Exchange,
Inc. (“Pacific Gatewny™ or the “Company™) regarding its future operations or financial performance or
related to the Company's expectations regarding the telecommunications industry. Lo light of the inberent
risks and uncertainties of any forward-looking statement, the inclusion of forward-looking statements in
this report should not be regarded as a repreésentation by the Company or any other person that the forward-
looking statements will come true. The reveaues and results of operations of the Company, and future
developments in the welecommunications industry, are difficult 1 forecast and could differ materially from
those projected in the forward-looking statements as a result of oumerous facton, including the following:
(i) changes in international settemnent rates; (i) changes in the mtics between ou'going and incoming
traffic; (i) foreign currency Nuctustions; (iv) termination of ceraia operating igreements or imsbility o
enter into additional operating agreements; (v) insccuracies in the Company®s forecasts of maffic; (vi)
changes in or developments under domestic or foreign laws, regulations, licensing requirements or
telecommunications standards; (vi) foreign political or economic instability; (vii) changes in the
availability of oansmission facilities such as undersea fiber optic cable or in the feasibility of building such
facilities; (ix) loss of the services of ey officers, such as Howard A. Neckowitz, Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Officer or Gail E. Granton, Executive Vice President, International Bus.~sss
Development and Secretary; (x) loss of a customer which provides significant reveaues to the Company;
(i) highly competitive market conditions in the industry; (xii) future management decisions regarding, for
example, acquisitions, capital expenditures or financings; (xiii) concentration of credit risk, (xiv) natural
disasters and catastrophic events, or (xv) opportunities for (and problems resulting from) the acquisition of
other companies or offibore ficilities. The foregoing review of important factors, including those
discussed in detail below, should not be construed as exhaustive, The Company undertakes no obligation
to release publicly the results of any future revisions it may make to forward-looking statements 1o reflect
events of circumstances afier the date hereof o to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated eventr,

The following table sets forth income statement data as » percentage of revenues for the period
indicated.

i Three Moaths Six Moaths
Ended June 30, Ended June 30,
1998 1997 1994 1997
Total Revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of long distance services B4.5% B1.2% B4, T% 81.0%
Gross margin 155% 17.8% 153% 17.0%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 6.6% B.9% 6.9% 5.2%
Depreciation 10% 1.0% 1.9% 1.9%
Total opersting expenses 8.6% 10.9% L% 10.1%
Operating income 9% =~ 6% 6.5% T.0%
Interest (income) expense, net -0.5% -0.8% 0.5% 0.9%
Other (income) expense, net 0.5% 0.3% .0% 0.2%
Income before income taxes 6.9% B.0% 6% B.0%
Provision for income taxes 2.5% 11% 24% 1.21%

Net income 4 4% 4.5% 43% 4.8%




Three Months Ended June 30, 1998 Compared to Three Months Ended June 30, 1997,

Revenues:  Total revenues for the tree months eaded June 30, 1998 increased 74% s 5110.0 million
from $63.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 1997 and i creased 5% from $105.0 million in the
quarter ended March 31, 1998. The incresse from the quaner raded June 30, 1997 was the result of
several factors. Fine, the Company increased the number of its opersting agreements to 43 at June 30,
1998 from 37 at June 30, 1997. Second, the pumber of wholess ¢ catrier customen increased 1o 153 mt
June 30, 1998 from 106 st Juse 30, 1997. Third, revenues from ¢ E&..Hﬁhgirn
million for the quarter ended June 30, 1998. The Company was 1 ot engaged in the retail business for the
quarter ended June 30, 1997, As a result of these factors, total ninutes increased 70.1% (rom the three
months ended June 30, 1997, while the sverage price per minute ¢ arged to customers improved slightly 10
E.HEE-EIEIE&F 1998, compared to 30.21 in the same quarter last year. Changes
EEEEI‘EEEIﬂEEFIEE
for the traffic terminating in and tansiting the US. and increases in the incidental U.S. domestic
terminating traffic influenced the average customer price per miswte. During the second quaner of 1998
all prior quarters), the Company sent more minutes out than it received under its opemting
sgreements. Because the same rate is charged by the foreign carrier to terminat» calls in thew country as
the Company charges the foreign camier to terminate calls in the United Stries, declining rates have an
adverse effect on revenue and estimated return trafTic revenue backlog, but, as a result of sending more
calls out than the Company receives, declining rates improve the gross margin received on the entire
transactios of & minute delivered with such foreign carrien.
Gross Margin: As a percentage of revenue, gross margin was 15.5% in the current three-month period,
down from 17.8% in the same period in the prior year, The decrease in margin resulted from higher fixed
costs due to offshore start-ups and reconfiguring of the U.S. petwork. The cost of long distance service
increased to $93.0 million ia the three months ended June 30, 1998 from $52.0 million in the three mooths
ended June 30, 1997. This increase in costs represents continued growth in outbound traffic on new and
existing routes.
Selling, Genaral and Administrative Expenses: Selling, jcoeral and administrative expenses a4 3
percertage of revenues were 6.6% in the three months ended 'une 30, 1998, down from 8.9% in e same
period in the prior year. Actusl expenses increased 29.8% 10 7.3 million in the three months ended June
30, 1998 from $5.6 million jn the three months ended June 30, 1997. This increase was due primarily
increased personnel and commission expenses. The increase in personnel expenses was directly
related 1o the increase in the number of employees in the Company's wholly owned subsidiaries w 129
June 30, 1998 from 67 k June 30, 1997, The increase in sale: commission expenses was primarily due
increased revenucs.
Deprecistion: Deprecistion incoeased 69.4% 1o $1.1 million in the three mooths euded Junc 30, 1998
from $1.3 millicn io the three months ended June 30, 1997. Depreciation as s percentage of revenues was
2.0% of revenue for the three months ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, The increase in the dollar sroount
was primarily due to deprecistion of additional transmissioa [ cilities acquired since June 30, 1997.
Income Tax: Income taxes increased 1o $2.7 million in the three months ended June 30, 1998 from 32.0
million in the three months ended June 30, 1997, primarily due 1o increased opersting income. The
effective tax rate was 40.0% in 1997 and 36.0% in 1998. The decrease in effective tax rate was attributable
eamnings of certain non-U.S. subsidiaries. A portion of these earnings is intended to be reinvested




Six Months Ended June 30, 1998 Compared 1o Six Months Ended June 30, 1997,

Revenues: Totul revenues for the six mooths ended June 30, 1998 increased 93% o $215.0 millios from
$106.9 million in the six months ended June 30, 1997. The increase was primarily the result of mcreased
sales 1o existing customers, an increase in the number of operating agreements with foreign parters to 43
at Juse 30, 1998 from 37 at Juns 30, 1996, and an increase in the number of wholesale customers to 153 &t
June 30, 1998 from 106 at June 30, 1997. In addition, reveoues from the Company's retail customers were

$7.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 1998, while there were no retail revenues for the six months
ended June 30, 1997,

Gross Margin: A3 a percentage of revenue, gross margin was 15.3% for the first balf of 1998, down from
17.0% for the first half of 1997. The decrease in margin resulted from higher fixed costs due to offshore
start-ups and reconfiguring of the U.S. network. The cost of long distance service increased 1o $182.2
million in the six months ended June 30, 1998 from $95.1 million in the six months ended June 30, 1997,
This increase in costs represents continued growth in outbound affic on new and existiag routes.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses: Selling, gesernl and administrative expenses as a
percentage of revenues were 6.9% in the six months ended June 30, 1998, dc=u from £.2% in the same
period in the prior year. Actual expenses increased 57.3% to $14.9 million in the six months ended June
30, 1998 from $9.4 million in the six moaths ended June 30, 1997. This increase was due primarily to
increased personne] and sales commission expenses. The increase in personnel expenses was directly
related to the increase in the oumber of employees in the Company's whally owned subsidiaries 1o 129 st
June 30, 1998 from 67 at June 30, 1997. The increase in sales commission expenses wa primarily due to
increased revenues.

Depreciation: Depreciation increased 93.8% to $4.1 million in the six months ended June 30, 1998 from
52.1 million in the six months ended June 30, 1997. Depreciation as & percentage of revenues was |.9% of
revenue for the six months ended June 30, 1998 and 1997. The increase in the dollar amount was primarily
due to depreciation of additional transmission facilities acquired since June 30, 1997.

Income Tax: Income taxes increased to $5.2 million in the six mooths ended June 30, 1998 from 3).6
million in the six months ended June 30, 1997, primarily due to increased operating income. The effective
tax rate was 39.8% in 1997 and 36.0% in 1998. The decrease in effective tax rate was attributable to
carmings of censin non-US, subsidiaries. A portior of these earnings is intended 1o be reinvested
wndefinitely in operations outpide the US. -

Liquidity and Capltal Ressurces
I

The Company has financed its rapid growth, including its capital expenditures, through funds
provided by operations and the funds from the public offering completed in the third quarter of 1996. Due
to the timing differences in the international settlement process, the Company's accounts receivable
turmover varies from its accounts payable turnover. The leagth of these unover s a function of different
timing requirements in the Company's sgreements with {oreign partners. For example, the length of the
Company's sccounts paysble tumover is partially due 1o its sccounts payable with foreign partnens, which
geoenally bave 180 day terms as a result of the six-mooth lag i the international settlement process.

Net cash used in operating activities was $4.4 million for the six mouths ended June 30, 1998 and
$3.5 million for the quarter ended June 30, 1997. This increase in cash used in opersting activities was
primarily & result of increased accounts receivable balances, which exceeded the caah inflow from greater
cash gepenting net income and higher sccounts payable balances,

Net cash used in investing activities was $17.) million for the six months ended June 30, 1998 and
521.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 1997. Capital expenditures for the first half of 1998 were
$14.0 million, down from $22.0 million in the first half of the prior year. Capital expenditures in both

1997 and 1998 were for the acquisition of partial ownerhip interests in international fiber optic cable




transmission systems and related equipment. In addition, in the firt quaner of 1998, the Company
scquired 16.66% of Ekooom S.A. de C.V. ("Ekosom”), s Mexican multimedia company, for 3.3 million
to cash and $1.8 million in Pacific Gatewny's common stock.

Net cash provided by financing sctivities was $0.3 millicn for the six months ended June 30, 1998
and 50.]1 million for the six months ended June 30, 1997. Substantially al) of these cash inflows were from
the exercise of stock options.

At June 30, 1998, the Company had outstanding commitments of $11.9 million for the scquisition
of additional ownership in digital underses fiber optic cables and network equipment. Since June 30, 1998,
the Company bas committed to purchase undemea fiber optic cable in the US-Japan cable network for 386
million. This investment is expected to be expended over the pext two years and funded through operating
cash provided by openting activities and other existing sources of liquidity, will be sufficient to meet its
outstanding capital commitments and its expected capital expenditures and working capital needs through
lhnmiﬂ'lm However, hcﬂq-rnrnhmhﬁwm#qﬂyuw
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PART [l. OTHER INFORMATION

Legal proceedings

MNooe

Item 2. Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds

Item 3.

ltem 4.

Nooe

Defaults upon Senior Securitics

Nooe

Submission of Matters to a Yotz of Security Holders

The Company's sanual mesting of stockholders was beld cn June 1%, 1998.

The following table sets forth information regarding the number of votes for, against, withbeld, or
abstaining and broker non-votes, with respect 1o each maiter presented at the meeting.

Both nominees for Class [ director were elected as follows:

NOMINEES FOR WITHHOLD
Charles M. Dalfen 12,123,858 640,450
Barty J. Volante 12,123,868 640,490

The amendment to the Company's Certificate of Lacorporation to increase the number of
suthorized shares of Common Stock from Fifty Millioa (50,000,000) o Seventy Million

ghares was as follows:

no,m.up} approved e
FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN NON-VOTE

11,573,546 1185312 5550 L]

The selection of CooperskLybrand L.LP. as the Company's independent suditors for the
fiscal year ending December 31, 1998 mmvdufnlhw:m
KER
FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN NON-VOTE
12,742,688 8120 13,550 50

Item 5. Other laformation

None
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ltemn 6. Exhibits snd Reports on Form §8-K

(a) The Exhibits filed as part of this report are listed below:

104

105.1
10.5.2
10.53
1054

Proxy dated April 30, 1998 by Gail E. Oraoton individually and as trustee of The Granton
Foundation

Employment Agreement effectivs January 1, 1998 between Howard A. Neckowitz and
Pacific Gatewny Exchange
Employment Agreement effective January 1, 1998 between Cail E. Granton and Pacific

Cateway
Employment Agreement effective January 1, 1998 betweea Ronald D. Anderson and
Employmcat Agreement effective January 1, 1998 between Robert F. Craver and Pacific
Gatewny Exchange _
Employment Agrecment effective January 1, 1998 between Fred A. Weismiller and
Pacific Gatewny Exchange

Financial Data Schedule

No reports oa Form 8-K have been filed during the quarer ended June 30, 1998




SIGNATURES

Pursuant 1o the requiremenss of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly suthorized.

FACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.

Dated: August 14, 1998

By:

Howsrd A. Neckowitz
President snd CEO

By: /s Sandn Grey

Chief Finincial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
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(X) ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCIIANGE
ACT OF 1934 [NO FEE REQUIRED]

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997
OR

{ ) TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 193 [NO FEE REQUIRED]

Commission file cumber 000-21043

Pacific Gateway Excll.lﬂe, Inc.

(Exsct pame of reglitrasd & epecifed
Delaware $4-31 4065
(Sue o other janadicuon of (TS Employer |dentification Mo )
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533 Alrport Boulevard, Sulte 505, Burlingame, California 94010
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Telephone Number: 650-375-6700
(Regutrent’s wisphone number, including wes code )

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Common Shares, Par Value $.0001 per Share

Preferred Share Purchase Rights, Par Value $.0001 per Share
(Ticks of class)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Secuoa 13 or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding |2 months (or for such shorer penod that the
registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days. Yes (] Mo O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to ltem 4035 of Regulation 5-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, 1o the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statemnents incorporated by reference in Part [11 of this Form 10-K or any amendment tw this Form
10K, 0

The aggregaie market value of voting siock beld by non-affilistes of the registrant on March 18, 1998, was
approximately $839,000,000, computed upon the basis of the closing sales price of the Common Shares on that
date. For the purposes of this computation, shares held by directors (and shares held by any entities in which
they serve as officens) and executive officens of the registrant have been excluded. Such exclusion is not intended.
nor shall it be deemed to be, an admission that such persons are affilistes of the registrant.

As of March 18, 1998, there were outstanding 19,113,955 Common Shares of 5.0001 par value, of the
registrant.
Documaents Incorporsied by Reference

|, The Registrant's definitive proxy statement 10 be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not
later than 120 days after the end of the Registrant’s fiscal year pursuant ©0 Regulation 14A relating to the
1998 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders.
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Note on [orward-looking statements

This Annual Repont contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
including statements regarding expected future revenue from delayed proportional retum traffic from foreign
parmers pursuant lo cerain operating agreements. Forward-looking statements are siatements other than
historical information or statements of current condition. Some forward-looking statements may be identified by
use of terms such as “‘believes,”” '‘anticipates,”” ‘‘plans,’” “‘intends’* or ‘“expects.’’ These forward-looking
statements relate to the plans, objectives and expectations of Pacific Gateway Exchange, Inc. ("'Pacific Gaewsy"’
or the “*‘Company’’) regarding its future operations or financial performance or related 1o the Company's
wmhwm.huﬂdhmmuwmmudu,
forward-looking statement, the inchusion of forward-looking statements in this report should oot be regarded as a
representation by the Company or any other person that the forward-looking statements will come true. The
revenues and results of operations of the Compaay, and future developments la the telecommunications industry,
are difficult to forecast and could differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements as a
result of numerous factors, including the following: (i) changes in international settlement rates; (ii) changes in
the ratios between outgoing and incoming traffic; (i) foreign currency fluctuations; (iv) termination of cerain
operating agreements or imability w ester into additional operating agreements; (V) inaccuricies in the
Company's forecasts of traffic; (vi) changes in or developments under domestic or foreign laws, regulations,
licensing requirements or tel¢ ommunications standards; (vii) foreign political or economic instabiliry; (vii)
changes in the availability of transmission facilities, such as undersea fiber optic cable; (ix) loss of the services
of key officers, such as Howard A. Neckowitz, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer or
Gail E. Granton, Executive Vice President, International Business Development and Secretary; (x) loss of a
customer which provides significant revenues to the Company: (xi) highly competitive market conditions in the
industry; (xii) future management decisions regarding, for example, acquisitions, capital expenditures or
financings: (xiil) concentration of credit risk; or (xiv) natursl disasters and catastrophic events. The foregoing
review of important factors including those discussed in detail below should not be construed as exhaustive, the
Company undertakes no obligation 1o release publicly the results of any future revisions it may make to forward-
looking statements to reflect evenis or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflact the occurrence of

{a) General Development of Busines

Pacific Gateway is a facilities-based international telecommunications carrier, which provides inlernational
telecommunications services 10 its target customer base of long distance service providers worldwide as well as
retail customers, The Company is incorporated in Delaware and commenced operations oo August 8, 1991. On
July 25, 1996, the Company and certain stockholders of the Company consummated a initial public offering of
6,057,050 shares of the Company's Common Stock. As a **facilities-based'’ carrier, the Company cwns or leases
its international petwork facilities including: digital undersea fiber optic cable, international switching facilities
and operating agreements with foreign curiers. The Company operates an international network cona.sting of
international and domestic switching facilities in the U.S. in Los Angeles, New York, and Dallas, and offshore
in the United Kingdom, New Zealand aod Russia. The Company has partial ownership interests in 17 digial
undersea fiber optic cable systems in the Atlaatic, Pacific and Caribbean regions and operating agreements that
provide for the exchange of traffic with foreign carrien.

In 1997, the Company began (o provide luternational long distance services o retall customers through its
existing network. In particular, the Company and GMCR Inc. (*'Globe Telecom''), » company operating in the
Philippines, formed a joint venture called **Pintouch’ 1o market international long distance services 1o the




As of December 31, 1997, Pacific Gateway had 43 operating agreements with foreign cariers in 28
countries around the world, which countries collectively represent approximately 54.3% of US.-originated
international traffic according o Federal Communications Commission (*'FCC'") 1996 statistics. The Company's
foreign parmens include both telecommunications carriers that have been dominant in their home markets, which
may be wholly or patially government-owned (often referred to as post telephone and telegraph companies o
*PTTy"") and non-dominant carriers that may have been recently established as a result of the deregulation of
foreign teleconumunications markets (*'Competitive Carriers™’).

Industry Backgro.nd

The international telecommunications market consists of all calls that originate in one country and terminate
in another. This market can be divided into two major segments: the U.S.-originated i=mational market (the
*U.S.-Originated Markst'"), consisting of all international calls which either originate or terminate in the United
States, and the overssas-originated international marke! (the *'Overseas-Originated Market'"), consisting of calls
between countries other than the United States. Services offered by international long distance carriers fall into
three primary categories: switched services, switch-based value-added services and international private line
services.

Bilateral operating agreements between international long diviance carriers in different countries are key
components of the international long distance telecommunications market Under an operaling agreement, each
carrier agrees to terminate traffic in its country and provide proportional return traffic (0 its parmer carrier. The
implementation of a high quality international metwork, including the acquisition and utilization of digital
undersea fiber optic cable and adherence 10 the technical recommendations of the laternational Telegraph and
Telephone Consultative Committee (the *'CCITT"') of the International Telephooe Union (the “ITU™) for
signaling, protocol and transmission, is an important element in enabling a carrier to compete effectively in the
international long distance telocommunications market

The international long distance telecommunications market has experienced rapid growth in receat yean.
During 1996, according to the FCC, the U.S.-Originated Market grew at an annual rate of 20.7% from $15.9
billion o $19.2 billion. The Company believes that the international telecommunications market will continue to
experience strong growth for the foreseeable future as a result of the following trends:

+ the opening of oveneas telecommunications markets due to deregulation and the privatization of
govemment-owned monopoly carriers, permitting the emergence of new carriers,

+ the reduction of international outbound long disance rates, driven by competition and technological
advancements, which i3 making intemational calling available to & much larger customer base and
stimulating incressing traffic volumes;

* the increased availability and quality of digital undersea fiber optic cable in the place of satellite- and
analog coaial cable-based transmission networks, which have enabled long distance camien o improve
the quality of their services and reduce their cost structures;

» the dramatic increases in the availshility of welephones and the number of access lines in service around
the world, stimulated by economic growth, government mandates and technological advancsments.

+ the worldwide proliferation of new communications devices such as cellular telephones, facsimile
machines and other forms of data communications equipment;

* the rapidly increasing globalization of commerce, trade and travel, and

. MMMWHWHMWMEMMML

Myﬂhwuu'lﬁnwnmﬂmmﬂcummm-mm

infrastructures in order 10 increase the number and quality of telephooe lines in their countries. The Company
umummumwmmﬂummm
intermational telecommunications services. Certaln countries have opened umir tzlecommunications markets (o
mpnﬁﬁmhmhumhhuldmw-dnmﬂm‘dmw
Deregulation of telecommunications services in the United States began in 1984 with the ATAT
Communications, lnc. (""AT&T'") divestiture. The Company believes that the trend of pew intemational
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International Switched Services

Value-Added Services. Value-added services include 800 service, international directory assistance with
the option of call completion, travel card services, enhanced facsimile services, videoconferencing and internet
access, among others. The provision of such value-added services offers carriers atiractive opportunities to
increase operating marging and offer 8 more competitive service to their customers.

International Privase Line Services. International private line services provide a dedicated point-to-point
connection between two locations without using a public switched network. For example, a typical privase line
would connect the New York and London branches of an iniernational bank. Customers of this service are
typically multinational corporations or government agencies which have substantial communications volume
between two of more international locations.

Operating Agreeminta

International long distance traffic is traditionally exchanged under swilched voice bilateral operating
agreements berween long distance carriers in two countries. In order 1o terminate & U S, -originated call in another
country, a U.S.-based international carrier may have an operating agreement with a carrier in that country or
mmmmmmwmummumw.m
agreements provide for the termination of traffic in, and return traffic 1o, the parmers’ respective countries for
mutual compeasation through negotisted sectlement rates. Operating agreements typically provide that a foreign
carrier will return through the U.S. carrier the same percentage of total US. terminating traffic as it receives
from the U.S.-based carrier and also provide for nerwork coordination and accounting and sertlement procedures.
The execution of an operating agreement between two carriers is typically sccompanied by #a equal lavasiment
by both carriers in digital undersea fiber optic cable between the two countries. While opersting agreements
genenally are for an unspecified term, the Company believes that the common ownership of transmission
ftiﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁnnpﬂhhuﬂ-yuuﬁﬂﬂmuﬂﬁndﬂhmﬁuﬁhhqm
relationships among international carriers.

Company Strategy

mw-mhumum-;mww-m
mmmwmmwu—uhwummmmmimum
continued growth in revenues and profitability. The Company's strategy for achleving this objective consists of
the following key elements:




Expand and Enhance Network Facilities

To support the expected growth in data and voice traffic, the Company intends to expand its investment in
new and existing digital undersea fiber optic cables. The Company is generally able to provide greater assurance
of the qualiry and reliability of tansmission at & cost-effective raie by routing wraffic over its owned international
facilities. The Company also intends to expand its switching and international gateway facilities in the United
States and to invest in network operations in certain forelgn locations in order to originate and terminate customer
traffic more cost effectively althougl there can be no assurance the Company will be successful in this expansion.
The Company utilizes state-of-the-art equipment and technologies that conform (o relevant operating standards
to ensure high quality, cost-effective transmission service.

Increase Overseas-Originated Traffic Through International Alliances, Joint Vientures and Acquisinions

The Company belicves that alliances and direct investments with foreign partmers have the potestial to
increase the Company's opportunities 10 increase traffic i the most rapidly growing segments of the international
telecommunications market. In July 1996, the Company and Kokusai Denshin Deawa (''KDD Japaa'") entered
into a seven-year cooperation agreement that contemplates joint projects in the communications field, including
joint product development of enhanced services, such a3 imaging and internet services.

In February 1998, the Company acquired 16.66% of the stock of Ekosom S.A. de C.V. ("Ekonom"), a
Mexican multimedia and internet telecom provider. The Company intends to use Ekonom's expertise 1o help it
provide a portfolio of multimedia and internet services 10 it customen. In addition, in conjunction with the
acquisition, the Company and Ekon m agreed 1o enter into an ethnic retail marketing joint venture in order to
market telecommunication services to certain ethnic communities although the terms of the joint venture have
not yet been finalived

The Company is currently evaluating several other potential alliances, investmeni opporunities and
acquisitions, including equity positions and opersting roles with both established and emerging international
ielecommunications carriers with operations in Asla, the Pacific Rim, Eastern Europe, Western Europe and Latin
America, ln many of the regions targeted by the Company, the provision of telecommunications services is being
deregulated, providing numerous opportunities either to provide wholesale services to other competitive carmiers
operating in the region or 1o service the end-user market directly. Additdonally, many of the value-added services
currently offered by the Company (n the United States (discussed below) can be provided abroad through such
alliances, cresting opportunities to genersis additional revenues through avalisble technology. In 1997, the
Company expanded its operations offshore 10 lnclude the United Kingdom, Russia, and New Zealand. The
Company is currently expanding 1o 4 new offshore locations. In each location the Company is in the process of
obtaining the appropriste licenses, and undergoing construction and pre-sales activities. There can be no
assurance that the Compeany will be successful in the expansion to these new locations.

Expand Product Line

The Company intends 1o expand the mnge of products and services that it offers o i customers (0 include
intermational 800 service, prepaid services such as debit and travel cards, international directory assistance with
the option of call completion service, enhanced facsimile service and virtual private network services and is in
the beginning stages of doing 0 in some respects. The Company belicves that leveraging its existing network by
offering additional value-added services will increase the loyalty of its existing customer bese ard help amract
new customers. These services will ensble Pacific Gateway's carmier customen © provide a broader moge of
international services to their end-user customens, which the Company expects will stimulate additional higher
margin international traffic over its network.




Secure Addinional Operating Agreements

Pulﬂ:ﬂmrmirnuhmmmmm:mmmummw
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additional countries.

Mk&mwmﬁmh“mwwﬂmm;mm.
the relative long-term ecosomic stractivensss of offering direct service 1 & particular country and the
availability of fiber optic o satellite transmission capacity to that country. Currently, the Company is focusing
iummmm“mumummmwwm
Amenica. The Company believes that these markets, and, in the pear future, the Middle East and Alfnica, offer
thMuﬂWWMWﬂmﬂdphmw
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as 1o Western Europe, through strategic relationships with well-established international carriers that offer
w»mw“pm-mhhmhﬂcmmuh
experience, relationships and knowledge of its management team have played, and will continue to play, a key
mumhmuwmwmummmw
alsn believes that as specific telecommunications markets become less regulated, its management team will be
ﬂumhmﬂn-ﬂ“h-ﬂuﬁuwﬁumuhﬁ.hhw
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Expand Customer Segments

luding ethnic marketing. The Company also intends to market its services 10
targeted large international telecommunications traffic to specific
cmmummmuhmmummmummw
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joint venture,

Maintain Efficient Low-Cost Operations

The Company believes it is important 10 maintain efficient, low-cost operations in onder to be competitive
in the internations] wholesasle telecommunications services market. Through continuous moaitoring of it

mmw;mhmwmmmmﬂmmmw.h
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among the lowest in the industry. The Company intends 1o maintain a small corporate staff and to continue
investing in network technology and information systems that will preserve and enhance its position as a low-cost
international telecommunications service provider.

ib) Financlal Information About Industry Segments
The Company classifics its operations into one industry segment, telecommunications services.

(¢} Narrative Description Of Business
Services

The Company provides four categories of services: international switched services, domestic switched
services, switch-based value-added services and intemational private line services. Substantially all the
Company's current revenues are generated by the sale of international and domestic switched services.

Internarional Swirched Services

The Company’s intermational switched service revenues e generated from ouigoing and incoming
international traffic caried through its intermational metwork including switching faciliies in the Uniwed
Kingdom, New Zealand and Russia. Revenues from intermational switched services are derived from country-
specific, usage-sensitive rates charged 10 its customers, return traffic from Pacific Cateway's foreign parners,
and terminating traffic in ity internatiooal switching factlities.

As of December 11, 1997, the Company had 43 operating agreements with foreign carmiers in 28 countries
under which it carries traffic through it network of switching facilities and digital undenses fiber optic cables, as
well as through leased satellite circuits. Through its network and its arrangements with U.S. and foreign carmier,
the Company is able to deliver traffic 10 or between all countries in the world that have direct dial service with
the United States. International switched services represented approximately 96.4%, 91.6% and B8.1% of the
Company's revenues in 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively.

Domesric Switched Services

The Company provides both originating and \erminating switched loag distance services within the United
States. The Company's originating network, which provides access and egress 1o local network providers,
extends to geographical areas around its switching facilities in Los Angeles (serving most major metropolitan
arcas in California, Arizona, and Nevada), New York (serving selected metropolitan locations in New York,
Washington, D.C., Massachusetts, Pennsylvania, Connecticut, New Jersey and Virginia) and Dailas (serving
metropolitan areas in Texas), The Company provides switched services as a cost-effective means to werminate its
return traffic in the mentioned sreas and for the U.S., 1o offer services to U.S.-based long distance resellers that
do mot own or lease switching facilities (*‘switchless resellen'’). Domestic switched services accounted for
approximately 2.6%, 7.4% and 11.7% of the Company's total revenues in 1997, 1996 and 1995 , respectively.

Emerging and Value-Added Services

The Company is broadening its focus 1o include a variety of emerging and value-added services. The
Company is utilizing its existing network 10 provide imsernastional long distance services to cenain ethnic retail
markests. In particular, the Company and Globe Telecom formed » joint venture called *“Pintouch’” 1o market
international long distance services to the Filipino-American community. In addition, the Company intends o
expand the range of products and services that it offers to include a variety of value-added services including
directory assistance, prepaid services such as debit and wravel cards, multimedia and internet services to s US.-
based wholesale carrier customers that do not provide such services directly 1o their customers. The Company
also has intermational 800 service available in 7 countries, The Company intends 10 enter the multimedia services
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Organization (the ““WTO""), wiich whmttﬂﬂﬁuhfm 1998. This agreement (the ""WTO
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in either the transited or terminating foreign jurisdiction.

Federal Regularion

General Requirements. The Company must comply with the requirements of common carriage under the
Communications Act of 1934, as amended (the *Communications Act™), including the offering of service on a
mﬂnﬂhﬂ?b&h!jﬂuﬂmﬂhrﬂn.mﬁﬂhﬁuﬂtwﬂﬁmmuﬂmd
authorizations or any transfer of de jure or de facto control of the Company.

mmmmmmum&upmtwmmmmmmmm+m
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obtain authority under Section 214 of the Communications Act prior 1o initisting international commnn carrier
services, and must file and maintain tariffs containing the rates, terms and conditions applicable 10 their services.
mmummm&mwmmwﬁmmmﬁm
uyuvmmﬂmuﬁummmwmhuwdhmm 14-day notice period. The
mummmthmmﬁmmm}mmm.mm.m
otherwise non-dominant U.S.-based carrier may be subject to dominant carrier regulation on a specific
international route if it is affilisted with & foreign carrier with markel ,ower operating at the foreign point. The
Company is not subject to dominant carrier treatment . any route.

Domestic interstate common carriers such as the Company are not required to obtain Section 214 or other
mmmmhumﬂmmummmm
carriers must, however, file and maintain tariffs with the FCC containing the specific rates, terms and conditions
wmhuummmm“mﬂmmaf:m,mwmm-m
tariff with the FCC.

uu:mumwwwumuﬂwwm
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required 1o file tariffs for domestic services. In August 1997, the FCC affirmed its decision 1 end tariff filing
for domestic interstate long distance services provided by non-dominant carriers. The FCC also
MHMMMMMMWMWMMNM
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of Columbia and the order on reconsideration also is stayed until the Coun issues & decision. It is not known
when the Court of Appeals will issue 3 decision.




International Services. The Company must have Section 214 facilities-based authority w offer
international services via satellites and undersea fiber optic cables. Section 214 resale suthonty is required o
resell international services. The Company has obtained global Section 214 facilities-based and resale authonty.

The Company must conduct its international business in compliance with the FCC's international
settlements policy (“ISP**). The ISP establishes the permissible boundaries for U.S.-based camiers and their
foreign correspondents to settle the cost of terminating each other's traffic over their respective networks. The
precise terms of settement are established in a comespondent agreement, also referred 10 s an operating
agreement. Among other lerms, the operating agreement establishes the types of service covered by the

the division of revenues between the carrier that bills for the call and the carmier that terminates the
call at the other end, the frequency of settlements (ie. monthly or quanerly), the currency in which payments
will be made, the formula for calculating traffic flows between countries, technical standards, procedures for the
settlement of disputes, the effective date of the agreement and the term of the agreement.

To promots competition in the international welecommunications market, in November 1996, the FCC lisued
2 pew international setilement order, which will likely provide international carriers more flewibility in
negotiating operating agreements. Under the FCC's pew internat'onal settlement order, U.S.-based cammiens can
apply for waivers 1o the FCC's uniform settlement policy and the FCC's proportionate return policy. Such
waivers, if granted, would allow carriers to negotiate more flexible operating agreements. Under the new order,
the FCC will no longer apply the ECO Test (defined below) as a threshold for determining when to permit
accounting rate flexibility with carrien from WTO member countries. Instead, the FCC adopted a rebuttable
presumption that Aexibility is permitted for WTO member countries. Although the Company is unable 1o predict
exactly how this new FCC order will affect its intemational business, the new ISP may reduce international
access costs and faci ‘tate the Company's international business.

International telecommunications service providers are required to file copies of their contracts with other
carriers, including operating agreements, with the FCC within 30 days of execution. The FCC's rules alio require
the Company to file periodically a variety of reports regarding its international taffic flows and use of
imternationz] facilities.

In February 1997, the United States entered in the WTO Agreement, which secks to open markets 10
competition in telecommunications services, improve foreign investment opportunities in the lelecommunications
industry and promote pro-competitive regulatory principles. In June 1997, the FCC proposed (o implement new
rules in order o comply with the WTO Agreement. These new rules were adopted by the FCC in November
1997 and became effective in February 1998,

The oew rules facilitate the entry of foreign carviers that operate in WTO member countries (""WTO
Carriers'") into the United States iclecommunications market The rules meplace the effective competitive
opportusities test (the **ECO Test'") for eatry of WTO Carriers with streamlined procedures that presume entry
is pro-competitive, The rules similarly relax the equivalency test for WTO Casriers that seek w provide switched
services over private linss between the United States and WTO member countries. [n addition, the rules have
revised competitive safeguards to eliminate or reduce various operating conditions and replace them with more
aggressive safeguards that enhance the FCC's ability to monitor and detect anti-competitive behavior in the
United States market. The FCC has retained the right to issue fines, require additional conditions on a grant of
suthority and, if pecessary, deny or rescind a grant of suthoriry.

The FCC also nasrowed the **No Special Concessions’’ nile, which genemally provides that United States
carriers cannol accept benefits from foreign carriers 1o which other United States carriers are not entitled. This
rule continues 1o apply to non-WTO Cariers. The new rule applicable to WTO Carriers simply prohibits United
States carriers from entering into exclusive amangements with WTO Carriers that have sufficlent market power
to affect competition advemely in the United States market To provide more certainty in the market, the
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FCC adopted a rebuttable presumption that WTO Carriers with less than 50% market share in foreign market
lack such market power. As a result, United States carriers may eater into exclusive dealings with WTO Carrien
involving a variety of matters, including operating agreements and interconnection armangements.

In addition, in 1997 the FCC revised the safeguards that apply 10 United States carriers classified as
dominant due to an affiliation with a foreign carrier that has market power on the foreign end of an international
route. The rules retain a single-tier dominant carrier regulatory approach and rely on reporting requirement, rather
than restrictions on carrhers’ provision of service, 1o affilisted carriers from restricting competition |n the United
States. In particular, the rules replace the 14-day advance notice wriff filing requirement with one-day advance
noticé requirement and accords these tarifl Alings a presumption of lawfulness. The rules alio remove the prior
approval requirement for circuit additions or discontinuances on the dominant route. The rules require quanerly
reports on traffic and revenue, provisioning and maintenance, and circuit status for the dominant carrier in order
o monitor and detect anti-competitive behavior. The rules also require a limited form of structural separation
between United States carriers and their foreign affilistes. The FCC adopted a rebuttable presumption that a
foreign camrier with less than 50% market share in the foreign market lacks market power and, therefore, it
United States affiliate should be presumptively trested as non-dominant.

In August 1997, the FCC adopted mandatory settlement rate benchmarks for carriers receiving traffic from
or sending traffic 1o the United States. These benchmarks are intended to reduce the rates that United States
carriers pay foreign carriers to terminate traffic in their home countries. The FCC prohibits & United Stxtes carrier
affilisted with a foreign carrier from providing facilities-based service 1o the foreign carrier’s home market until
and unless the foreign carrier has implemented a settlement rate within the benchmark. In connection with these
rules, the FCC also adopied rules that liberalize the provision of switched services over private lines 1o WTO
member countries by allowing such services on routes where 530% or more of United States billed traffic is being
terminated in the foreign counsy st or below the applicable sertlement rate benchmark, or where the foreign
country's rules conceming the provision of international switched services over private lines are deemed
equivalent to United States rules.

The Company is unable 1o predict the full effect on the international telecommunications market resu'ring
from the WTO Agreement or the rules enacted to implement its provisions or the establishment of mandatory
setilement rate benchmarks. These changes are expected 10 increase competition in the welecommunications
market. See "‘—Competition'’. These changes may result in lower costs to the Company, however, the revenues
that the Company receives from inbound international traffic may decrease 10 a reater degree as a result of
increased competition. WTO Carriers with market power in their home markets may be sble io more easily offer
United States and foreign cusiomens services o the disadvantage of United States camriers, which may continue
to face substantial obstacles in cbtaining from foreign governments and foreign camiers the suthority and
facilities to provide such services. ln addition, many foreign carriers are currently challeaging the enforcesbilicy
against such carriers of the FCC's order adopting mandatory settlement rate benchmarks. A finding that this order
was unenforceable against such carriers could accelerate the entry of foreign carriers into the United States
market by making it easier for foreign carrien 1o route international traffic to the United States at low, cost-based
termination rates, while Usited States carriers would continue 1o have 0 route intemnational traffic into most
foreign countries at much higher settiements rates. There can be no assurance that these events would not have a
material adverse effect od the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

Foreign Ownership, Under the Communications Act, non-US. citizens, foreign governments or
corporations organized under the laws of a foreign country that is not WTO member country may not (1) directly
or indirectly own greater than 25% of an imemational Section 214 licensee or (ii) indirectly own greater than
25% of a radio licensee, in each case without first obtaining FOC approval after satisfying the ECO Test. For
WTO Carriers, the FCC has replaced the ECO Test In favor of sn open eatry standard, provided that cenain
competitive safeguards will continue 1o apply. The PCC has reserved the right in certain cases 1o attach additional
conditions to a grant of suthority, and 1o deny the application in the exceptional case in which an application
poses & very high risk 10 competition.




RBOCs 10 provide domestic and intemnationa long distance services 1o customens located outside of the RBOCs'
home regions; permits a petitioning RBOC to provide domestic and international long distance service to
customers within its operating area on a state by state basis upon finding by the FCC that a petitioning RBOC
has satisfied cenain criteria for opening up its local exchange network to competition and that provision of long
distance services would further the public interest; and removes existing bamien o entry into local service
markets. Additionally, there were significant changes in: the maaner by which carrier-to-carmier armangements
!.EEEHE-EEEIE!EE%EE%EEEE
unsuthorized switching of customers. The FCC has instinuied and, in most instances completed, proceedings
addressing the implementation of this legislation.

In implementing the Telécom Act, the FCC established natioawide rules designed o encoursge new eatrants
EE%FEE%EEEEE'EEE%
(*"ILECs"), resale of [LECs' retail services, and use of individual and combinations of unbundled network
elements. These rules set the groundwork for the statutory criteria governing RBOC entry into the long distance
market. Appeals of the FCC Order adopting those rules were consolidated before the United States Count of
i.ﬂ&n!ﬁbﬁtﬂﬁ?.ﬁiﬂ:ﬂ::r?mﬁﬂtﬂti%!iﬂ!%
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10 be premature, but vacated significant portions of the FCC's nationwide pricing rules, and vacated an FCC rule
%EE&E!%E.EE?EEEEE
the FCC, and cerain other parties, sought certiorari in the United States Supreme Court, which was granied.
Certain RBOCs have also raised constitutional challenges to provisions of the Telecom Act restncting RBOC
%EEEIEEEEEEEEEE
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Texas ruled that these restrictions violate the Bill of Amainder Clause of the U.S. Constitution. Currently, this
decision only applies to SBC Corporation (**SBC''), US West Communications Group US WEST™') and Bell
Atlantic Corporation (*‘Bell Atlantic™’). ATAT, MCI, the U.S. Department of Justice and the FC™ announced
that they will appeal the decision and sought a stay of the ruling. The Company cannot predict either the ultimate
outcome of these or future challenges of the Telecom Act, any related appeals of regulatory or court decisions,
or the eventual effect on its businesses or the industry in general.
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Corporation (“'BellSouth'") seeking suthority 1o provide inter-local access transport area “interL ATA'') long
distance service 1o Michigan, Oklashoma and South Carolina, respectively. SBC has sppealed the FCC's denial
of its application to the Eighth Circuit. ln its denial of an Ameritech application and a BellSouth application, the
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their intention to file applications at the FCC for suthority 1o provide inter LATA services. The Company cannot
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long-distance business, they could become major competiton of the Company It is also possible that they could
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consolidated before the Eighth Circuit. Also, several state agencies have stamed proceedings to address the
reallocation of implicit subsidies contained in access rates and retail service rates 1o state universal service funds.
Access charges are a principal component of the Company’s telecommunications expense. Pacific Gateway
cannot predict either the outcome of these appeals or whether or not the result(s) will have a material impact
upon the consolidated financial position or the Company's results of operations,

Effect of Foreign Laws of Certain Termination Arrangements

The Company has entered into and expects to continue 10 enter into ceruain termination aangements with
alternative foreign carriers that are not the dominant carriers in their respective foreign countries. These
arrangements involve the termination of U.S. originated traffic over private leased lines into foreign countries
and may be viewed by foreign regulatory agencies as *‘international simple resale’’ arrangements. The Company
believes that foreign telecommunications regulstions are being lberalized and that in the future such
ammacgements may be expressly spproved by foreign regulatory agencies. Nevertheless, at this time the FCC or a
foreign regulatory agency in e particular country may take the view that such aTangrTents are not (o compliance
with current regulstory policies relating o private line resale. If the FCC finds that such wrangements violate
FCC rules, the FCC could impose & variety of sanctions on the Company, including rescission of the Company's
Section 214 License. In addition, the operations of alternative Carriers, which compete with the PTT, may not
be permitted by foreign regulatory agencies or the PTT may act unilaterally 1o cancel or climinate the private
line service on which the alternative rarrier depends. In 1997, regulatory authorities in Hong Kong and the PTT
in Mexico have acted against such mrrangements. The alternative foreign carriers with whom the Company enters
into such arrangements, and perhaps the Company itself, could be subject to a variety of penalties in connection
with such armmangements under foreign or US. law, including without limitation orders 10 cease operations or (0
limit future operations, loss of licenses or of license opportunities, fines, seizure of equipment and, in certain
foreign jurisdictions, criminal prosecution. The revenue and/or profit generated under such amangements may
have become a significant portion of the owerall revenue andior profit of the Company st the time such

are discoversd and curtailed. Moreover, the discovery of the existence of such amangements by
foreign PTTs could adversely affect the Company’s business relationships with such foreign PTTs. Any of the
developments described above (ie., the imposition of penalties, the loss of revenue and/or profit generated by
such arrangements (whether as a result of regulatory problems or otherwise) or the discovery of the exitence of

such arrangements by foreign PTTs) could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, operating
results and financial condition.

Employees

As of December 31, 1997, Pacific Gateway's wholly-owned subsidiaries had 90 full-time employees, of
which 10 were engaged in international relations, 39 in operations, engineering and information systems, 20 in
sales, customer support and business development, 11 in administration. The Russian subsidiary of which the
company owns & majority interest has 30 employees.

{d) Financisl Information About Foreign And Domestic Operations And Export Sales

During 1997, the company developed and acquired offshore subsidiaries in the United Kingdom, New
Zealand, Russia, Bermuda and Cyprus. For information regarding foreign and domestic operauons and export
sales from the US. see Note (6) entitled **Segment Data’* in the Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Pan I, iem 8 of this 10-K.

Risk Fectors

Dependence On Operating Agreements With Foreign Partaers

Pacific Gateway's suategy is based on its ability 10 enter into operating agreements with foreign carriers
which the Company refers 10 as foreign partners, in cach of the foreign countries it has targeted 30 it can
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terminate traffic in, and receive retumn traffic from, that country. The Company believes that it would not be able
to serve its customen af competitive prices without such operating agreements. The operaling agreements &re
genenally for an unspecified term in accordance with industry practice, although many of the Company's foreign
partners have mutual investments with the Company in digital undersea fiber optic cable 1o assure loag-term
telecommunications access between their respective countries and the United States. While the Company has
been successful in negotiating and maintaining operating agreements, none of which has been erminated to date,
the trend toward deregulation of telephone communications in many countries and a significant reduction m
outgoing traffic carried by Pacific Gateway, among other things, could cause foreign parmers to terminate their
operating agreements, or could cause such operating agreements to have substantially less value to the Company.
Such termination by certain of the Company’s foreign partners could have a material advene effect on the
Company's business. Moreover, thers can be no assurance that the Company will be able 1o enter into additonal
operating agreements in the future. The failure 1o enter into additional operating agreements could limit the
Company's ability w0 increase its revenues on a profitable basis.

Managing Rapid Growth

The Company is experiencing a period of rapid growth, which is expected to continue 10 place a significant
strain on the Company’s management, operational and financial resources. In order to manage its growth
effectively, the Company must continue to implement and improve its operational and financial systems and
controls, to purchase and utilize more digital undersea fiber optic cable and other transmission facilities and w0
expand, train and manage its employes base. Inaccuracies in the Company’s forecasts of traffic could result in
insufficient or excessive transmission facilities and disproportionate fixed expenses. The Company's overflow
traffic is handled by other international carriers to which the Company pays per minute usage fees. The Company
is not able to assure that the quality of these services is commensurate with the transmissicn quality provided by
the Company. If the Company .- not sbie to manage its growth effectively or maintain the quality of its service,
the Company’s business may be adversely affected.

Risks Of Insernarional Telecommunications Businesy

The Company generstes a significant portion of its revenues by providing inernational wholesale
telecommunications services to its customers. The Company's operations are subject 10 certain risks, such as
changes in foreign government regulations and telecommunications standards, licensing requirements, tanffs,
taxes and other trade barriers, as well as political and economic instability. The Company’s revenues and coat of
long distance services are sensitive 10 changes in internatioual settlement rates, changes in the ratios between
outgoing and incoming traffic, foreign currency fluctuations, and import and export regulations. International
rates charged 1o customers are likely to decrease in the furure for a variety of reasons, including increased
competition between existing carriens, new entrants into niche markets and the consummation of joint veatures
among large international carriers that facilitate targeted pricing and cost reductions. Purthermore, in the event
of any dispute arising from foreign operstions, the Company may be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of
foreign courts and may not be successful in subjecting foreign persons or entities to the jurisdiction of the courts
in the United States. The Company may also be hindered or prevented from eaforcing their rights with respect to
foreign governments because of the doctrine of soversign immunity. There can be no assurance that the laws,
regulations or administrative practices of foreign countries relating to the Company's ability to do business in
that counery will not change. Any such change could have a material adverse effect on the business and financial
condition of the Compasy.

In addition, the Company's business could be advemaly affected by a reversal in the current trend owand
deregulation of government-owned lelecommunications camers. The rates that the Company can charge iu
customers [or international services may also decrease in the future due to the widespread resale of intemational
private lines 1o provide switched volce services, the provision of international services via non-traditional means
including Internet and the rapid growth of international circuit capacity due 10 the deployment of new undersea
fiber optic cables and new high capacity satellite systems in the Atlantic, Pacific and ladias Ocean regions. There
can be no assurance that the Company will be able to increase its traffic volume or reduce its operating costs
sufficiently to offsei any resulting rale décreasss.

14




The Company has entered into and expects to continue (0 enter (nto cerain lermination amangements with
aliernative foreign carriers that are not the dominant carriers in their respective foreign countries. These
arrangements involve the termination of U.S. originated traffic over private leased lines in foreign countries and
may be viewed by foreign regulatory agencies as *‘international simple resale’” arangements. The Company
believes that foreign telecommunications regulations are being liberalized and that in the "uture such
arrangements may be expressly approved by foreign regulatory agencies. Nevertheless, the FCC or a foreign
regulaiory agency in a particular country may take the view thai such amangements are nol in compliance with
current regulatory policies relating to private line resale. If the FCC finds that such arrangements violate FCC
rules, the FCC could impase a variety of sanctions on the Company, including rescission of the Company’s
Section 114 License. In addition, the operations of altemative carriers which compets with the FTT, may not be
permitied by foreign regulatory agencies or the PTT may act unilaterally 1o cancel or eliminate the privaie line
service on which the alternative carrier depends. In 1997, regulatory authorities in Hong Kong and the PTT in
Mexico have acted against such arrangements. The alternative foreign carmiers with whom the Company enters
into such armngements, and perhaps the Company itself, could be subject 10 & variety of penalties in connection
with such arrangements under foreign or U.S. law, including without limitation orders to cease operations or to
limit future operations, loss of licenses or of license opportunities, fines, seizure of equipment and, in certain
foreign jurisdictions, criminal prosecution. The revenue and/or profit generated under such aangements may
have become a significant portion of the overall revenue andior profit of the Company at the time such
arrangements are discovered and curtailed. Moreover, the discovery ol the existence of such amangements by
foreign PTTs could adversely affect the Company's business relstionships with such foreign PTTs. Any of the
developments described above (i.c., the imposition of penalties, the loss of reveaue and/or profit generated by
such armangements (whether as a result of regulatory problems or otherwise) or the discovery of the existence of
such armangements by foreign PTTs) could have a material advene effect on the Company’s business, operating
resulis and financial condition.

Dependence On Availability C " Transmission Facilities

The future profitability of the Company will depend in part on its ability to obtain transmission (acilities on
a cost-effective basis. Because digital undersea fiber optic cables typically take several years to plan and
construct, carriers generally make investments based on a forecast of anticipated traffic. The Company has not
controlled the planning or construction of digital undersea fiber optic transmission facilities. The Company seeks
access to such facilities through partial ownership positions. If ownership positions are not available, the
Company must sesk access to such facilities through lease arrangements on negotisted terms that may vary with
industry and market conditions. The Company currently has partial ownership interests in 14 digital undersea
fiber optic cable systems. In addition, unlike AT&T, MCI, Sprint and WorldCom, the Company does not have
direct sccess from its gateway switches 10 the digital undersea fiber optic cable heads, and is required to lease
these facilities from competitors of the Company. The cost of leasing access from the Company's gateway
switches to the digital undersea fiber optic cable heads is currently approximately less than | % of the Company's
revenue. There can be no assurance of cootioued svailability of transmission facilities or access to digital
undersea fiber optic cable heads on economically viable terma.

Competition

The international telecommunications industry is highly competitive and subject to the introduction of new
services facilitated by advances in techoology. International telecorumunications providers compete oo the basis
oi'priu.wmmm,Mdmhuw-hm-MMtMUi»
based international telecommunications services market |s dominated by AT&T, MCI and Sprint. The Company
also competes with WorldCom and other carriens in certain markets. As the Company’s network expands to serve
a broader range of customers, Pacific Gateway expects to encounter increasing compettion from these and other
major domestic and international communications companies, many of which may have significantly greater
resources and more exiemsive domestic and international communications networks than the Company.
Moreover, the Company s liksly 1© be subject to additional competition as a result of the formation of global
alliances among the largest telecommunications carriers. The Company also faces competition from companies
offering resold international telecommunications services. The Company expects that competition from such
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resellers will increase in the future in tandem with increasing deregulation of telecommunications markets
worldwide.

The telecommunications industry is in a period of repid 1 :chaological evolution, marked by the introduction
of new product and service offerings and iacreasing satellite Tansmission capacity for services similar 1o those
provided by the Company. Such technologies include satellite-based systems, such as the proposed Lridium and
GlobalStar systums, utilization of the Internet for internatnal voice and data communications and digital
wireless communication systems such as personal communic wtions services. The Company is unable to predict

ich of many possible future product and service offerings will be important to maintain i competitive
position or what expenditures will be required 1o develop anc provide such products and services. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able 1o maintain its ccmpetitive position in the future.

Recent regulatory changes also are expected 1o increase competition in the telecommunications industry. In
February 1996, the Telecom Act was adopied. The Telecom Act promotes additional competition in the
intrastate, interstate and international telecommunications markets by both U.S.-based and foreign companies.
The Telecom Act permits the RBOCs to compete in interstate and lc=~mational service. Some RBOCs have
begun to resell international services. AT&T has obtained relaxed pricing restrictions and relief from other
regulatory constraints that should make it easier for ATAT to compete with aliernative carriers such as the
Company. In addition, in February 1997, uver 60 countries signed a giobal agreement on islecommunications
under the auspices of the WTO, which agreement became effective in February 1998. The WTO Agreement
seeks 10 open markets 10 competition in telecommurations :ervices, improve foreign investment opportunities
in the elecommunications industry and promote pro-compet tive regulatory principles. The FCC has adopted
various rules designed to implement the principles of the WTO Ajgreements See '‘Business—Government
Regulation.”* There can be no assurance that the Company will be able 10 cffectively compete in the pew
regulatory eavironment or that thess changes or other regulatory developments will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company's business, financlal condition or results of operations.

Dependence On Key Personnl

The Company is dependent on the effors of Howard A. Neckowitz, Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer; Gail E. Granton, Executive Vice President, International Business Development and
Secretary; Roaald D. Anderson, Vice President, Operations und Engineering: Robert F. Craver, Senior Vice
President, International Relations; Fred A. Weismiller, Executive Vice President, [nternational Marketing and
Sandra D. Grey, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President, Finance, as well as a group of employees with long-
standing industry relationships and techaical knowledge of the Company's operations. The loss of the services
of one or more of these individuals could materially and adversely affect the business of the Company and its
future prospects. The Company does not maintain key persoa life insurance on any of its officens or employses.
The Company's future success will also depend on s ability to atract and retain additional management,
technical and sales personnel required in coonection with the growth and development of its business.

Capital Expenditures; Poieniial Need For Additional Financing

The facilities-based telecommunications industry require: substantial capital investment in switching and
peripheral equipment and digital undersea fiber optic cables. Growth o the number of minutes transmitied,
internations! locations and customers served by the Company will require additional iavestment in equipment
and facilities. While the Company believes that i existing and anticipated sources of liquidity should be
sufficient 10 fund the capital requirements of it current business for the foreseeable future, ceraln events may
occur that would require the Company 1o obtain additional financing, which could take the form of the public
sale of debt or equity securities. Such events could include acquisitions, the decision 10 expand investment in
facilities, faster than expected growth, or lower than anticipated funds generated from operations. There can be
no assurance thai the Company will be able 1o raise additional financing, or, if raised, that the terms of such
financing will be favorable to the Company.




Ge rernment Regularion

The Company's business is heavily regulated. See ' Business—GOovemment Regulation'', The Company's
intersiate and international facilities-based and resale services are subject to regulation by the FCC, and
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of terminating foreign jurisdiction. There can bs no assurance that foreign countries will not adopt laws or
regulatory requirements that could adven:ly affect the There
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marke:. See **—Competition.”" These may result in lower costs 10 the Company, however, the revenues
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material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition or results of operations.

Foreign Ownership

Under the Communications Act, noa-U.S. citizens, foreign governments or corporations organized under
the laws of a foreign country that is not WTO member country may not (i) directly or indirectly own greater
than 25% of an international Section 214 licensee or (i) indirectly own greater than 23% of a radio licensee, in
cach case without first obtaining FCC approval after satisfying the ECO Test. For WTO Cariars, the FCC has

casier for foreign competitors 10 acquire customens of the Company, which may result in the migration of those
customers from the Company's petwork and onto the competiton’ networks.

Federal Legislation and Implementasion

The Telecom Act substantially revises the Communications Act. The legislation is designed 1o promote
mhﬂuhﬂmw.mmmmhm»uh:nm
for local exchange carriers and other telecommunications carriers where the public interest and competition
warrant. To the extent such fexibility is provided, the Company’s ability to compete for cerain services may be
adversely affected. The legislation also provides specific guidelines under which the RBOCs caa provide la-
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On May 7, 1997, the FCC announced that it will issue s series or orders that will refor.s Univenal Service
Subsidy allocations and adopted various reforms (0 the existing mie structure for inierstate access services
provided ty the [LECs that are designed to reduce access charges, over time, 1o more economically efficient
levels and rate structures. 11 also affirmed that information services providen (including, among others, 15P1) should
not be subject to existing access charges. Petitions for reconsideration of, among other things, the access service
and ISP Exemption related actions were filed before the FCC and sppeals taken to various United States Courts of
Appeals. On reconsideration, the FCC, in significant part, affirmed the access charge and ISP Exempuon actions,
and the coun sppeals have been consolidated before the Eighth Circuit Also, several stale agencies have staried
proceedings to address the reallocation of implicit subsidies contained in access rates and retail service rates W state
univeral service funds. Access charges are a principal component of the Company's ielecommuRIcations expense.
Mkmwpﬂn:ﬂhdeMuMwmumm}mﬂmﬁn
material impact upon the consolidated financial position or the Company's results of operations.

In February 1997, over 60 countries signed a global agreement on lelecommunications under the auspices
of the WTO, The WTO agreement, which became effective on February 5, 1998, seeks to open markets 1o
competition in telecommunications services, improve foreign avestment opportunities in the telecommuiications
industry and 10 adopt pro-competitive regulatory principles. The Company is unable to predict the effect the
WTO agreement will have on the Company.

In sum, thers can be no assurance thai current laws and FCC and other regulations will ot be amended or
modified. Any such amendment or modification could have a material sdvense effect on the Company’s business,
results of operations or financial conditon.

Effects of Natwral Disaster: and Other Catastrophic Events

The Company's business is susceptible to natural disasters and catastrophic events such as earthquakes, fire,
terrorism and war. Although the Company has taken & number of steps 10 prevent its network from being affected by
natural disasters such as building redundant systems for power supply 10 the switching equipment, there can be oo
assurance that any such systems will prevent the Company’s switches from becoming disabled in the event of a
carthquake, power cutage or otherwise. The fallure of the Company's network, or & significant decrease in ielephone
traffic resulting from effects of a natural or man-made disaster, could have 8 material adverse effect on the Company’s
relationship with its custorners and the Company's business, results of operations and financial condinon.

Concentration Of Credit Risk

Seven of the Company's customers accounted for approximately 40% and 52% of gross accounts receivable
as of December 31, 1997 and December 11, 1996, respectively. One customer accounted for 10.4% of the
Company's 1997 reveaues. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers but gesenally
does not require collateral 1 support accounts receivable from its customers. The Company's allowance for
doubtful accounts is based on current market conditions. Losses on uncollectible accounts have consistently been
insignificant and within management's expectations. However, the failure of any of the Company's large
mmﬂmuhwhwwumm:mmﬂmaﬂnmm
on the Company's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Anri-Takeover Provisions
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»Preferred Stock'') and to determine the price, rights, preferences and privileges of those shares without any
further vote of actions by the stockholders. The rights of the holders of Common Stock will be subject 0, and
may be adversely affectzd by, the rights of the holdens of any Preferred Stock that may be lssued in the future.
The issuance of shares of Preferred Stock, while potentially providing desirable flexibility in coanection with
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
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additional facilities will be available, when needed, on commercially reasonable terms.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
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ITEM 4, SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matien mdﬂhﬂblmﬂﬁmamcnmmmmmquwdm
fiscal year ended December 31, 1997,
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
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cfficers and other key members of management of the Company.

The executive officers of the Company are as follows:

. — ap e

Howard A. Neckowitx .......... 44  President and Chief Executive Officer

Gail E.Grantos .. . o ccsannnrrres 42  Executive Vice President, Intemational Business Development and
Secretary

Sandra D, Grey ...ovvrvirirenss 31  Chief Financial Officer and Vice President, Finance

Rooald D. Andersogl . . ......:.:- 4]  Senior Vice Presid=nt, Operstions and Engineering

Robert F.Craver......cocvvveves 55 Senlor Vice President, International Relations

Fred A. Welsmiller ... ccovvveeens $6 Executive Vice President, International Marketing
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From 1977 10 1982, Mr, Neckowitz worked at ATAT in its Overseas Department.
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MS. SANDRA D. GREY has served as Chief Financial Officer of the Company since 1996. From 1989 to
1996, Ms. Grey worked for Telecom New Zealand, the primary provider of telecommunications services in New
Zealand, where she was Chief Financial Officer of the international subsidiary. Ms. Grey has more than § yean
experience in international 1elecommunications.

MR. RONALD D. ANDERSON has served as Senior Vice President, Operations and Engineering of the
m;mmnmm;mmmw.mmmmmmmr
Insernational, Inc., an international telecommunications carrier (hat has since been acquired by WorldCom.
Mr., Anderson has more than 16 yean of experience in domestic and international telecommunications
Mummwwuwwuﬂmhmu
satellite, PTT techaical interface and bilateral techoical negotiations.

MR, ROBERT F. CRAVER has served as Sealor Vice President, International Relations of the Company
since February 1994, Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Craver worked st GTE Hawailan Telephone Co., Iac.
from 1087 to 1994. While at OTE Hawalian Telepbone, Mr. Craver directed that company’s international
m-m&mmmmumwmmusmm
AT&T. for & total of more than 21 years of experience in the international ielecommunications industry.
Mr. Craver has extensive experience io intsrnational negotiations with frreign parmers and has served as an
officer of the Pacific Telecommunications Council.

MR. FRED A. WEISMILLER joined the Company in November 1994 as Executive Vice Presideat,
International Marketing. My, Weismiller's responsibilities include developing the valued-added long distance
services which can be sold to U.S. carriers and 1o carriers in developing overseas markets. From 1991 1o 1994,
Mr. Weismiller served as Managing Director and Executive Director, Sales and Marketung at Telecom New
Zealand. Mr. Welsmiller has 26 yoars of experieoce in imternational snd domestic islecommunications
management, including 20 ye.ss with AT&T, where his final assignment was in Hong Kong as the Managing
Director of the AT&T Regional Technical Center from 1989 to 19590
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ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The Common Shares were initially offered 10 the public on July 19, 1996 at a price of $12.00 per share.
MCWMHMMHMMWHM“'MW"W"

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices for the Common
Shares as reported by the NASDAQ National Markst. Such prices reflect inter-dealer prices, withou! retail mark-
up, mark-down or commission, and do not necessarily represent actual transactions.

g Low
Quarter ended September 30, 1996 (from July 19, 1996).............. $3.000 $12.000
Quarter ended December 31, 1996 ........cocviiiiniciinianiasns $37.128 $25.875
Quarter ended March 31, 1997 ..o vvivnrirrnrnnrnisinisninnninnss $39.250 $22.500
Quarterended June 30, 1997.......ocviinnienannnnrnananssssnssss $29.000 $11.7%0
Quarter ended September 30, 1997, .. .0 cviervreiosrsssrassceianss $39.375 $27.000
Quarter ended December 31, 1997 ......ocovviiiinniinianinrnacans 135,125 $31.000

As of March 18, 1998 there were 97 holders of record of the Common Shares of the Company.

The Company has never pald cash dividends on its Common Stock and has no plans o do 50 in the
fureseeable future. The Company intends Lo retain earnings, Lo develop and expand its business.




ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data as of and for each of the five years in the period ended
December 31, 1997 have been derived from the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company. The
following data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto
and **Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ included
herein. i

Your Ended December 31,
1993 1 1994 1996 1997
(la thousands cuoepd par abary REcnll|
Statement of Operations Data:
REVEDME. ... cccnssnnsasnsnmssssssrsnssrsannsias 9048 520913 S$76.416 S162.426 § 298.609
Cost of long distance SerYiCes .. ..oorserensrsinancess 4036 17,196 66346 140340 2354076
Gross MATRID ...ocoecassnssassrsnnssasassinoins 1012 LTI7T 10070 22,086 44513
Selling, geoeral and administrative expenses . .......... 1008 2273 5467 IL113 21416
Depreciation . ....ovovaaus T 104 410 1.124 2,044 5417
Operating income (J088). . .ovcevrisrasissncssanss (100) 1,034 3479 8929 17,700
Other expenss/(IncOme), BT . ... oovevesriesnsiniss ] — —_ — 129 (126)
Interest expense/(income), BOL. . ......ooviiinis RN 12 193 5N (B43)  (2,009)
Income (loss) before Income taxes ........occvvves (12) B4l 1,941 9.683 19,835
Provision for income tXes . .....coivvrasnreisrnnss —_ 208 1.155 ign 7318
MNet ineome (JOBE) ..o ocvvvnsnnnssrrssnrsisnnrsanns $112) 8 63 S 1786 § 5B08 § 11497
Paor s S S SEEE TS e ]
Met income (loss) per share—diluted ................. (3001) § 004 § 012 § 034 5 054
T me—ee D SR el LS I
Weighted average shares outstanding—diluted .. ....... 14300 14300 14535 16871 19,497
P e = T R e e
St e
(] 1994 1999 ] 17
s thommads rzepl revenves per misots of B wmounU)
Other Operating Data:
EBITDA(L) cnncnianmnsisssnsnssansnnrsssnnnnss $ 4 § 1444 S 4603 310973 5 1II1T
Capital Expenditianes ........covvviereaiassnnnnns $1.542 $ 3745 $ 7233 5 18669 3 34715
Minutes of UM . ..oovaviiirsniirenrianans vereenes 13,980 61690 252925 563,495 1,005,649
Revenues per minuls U8 ... ....oooviasscasisnanss $037 §$ 034 § 030 § 029 § 029
Estimated return traffic revenue backlog (2) ......... $ IS8 3 906 § 6,142 3 13,719 § 10,685
As of Decsmber 11,
1993 1994 o 1956 1997
Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalents .. .......... S wiess 5§ 63 % 9 §1792 5 45,56} § 43,350
Working capital (deficit) ..........c.o0iiiiiinn (865) 242  (6,412) 25,031 (14.541)
TOUR] BB . . < ccrvssisssssasarsnsninsnnsstonnnan 4,130 12301 9976 103816 171,617
n‘vdmhﬂMl!lllillttlilqnpqu. ........ T—_— — :m — —
Revolving line of credit, related party ....... 718 4488 2420 — -
Stockholders’ equity. ... oovvsvases R 458 1,104 2891 6Z4T2 76573

i mq_—-ﬂn_w-_““dwwmhu"
caah fiowy u defimed by prnerally scoepesd scooumtiag prncipies sed doct mol Decrissnly imadic s et cash Bow wre sulficend o hand
all of the Company's cash neads. ERITDA b & fimancial swesws commonly wsed in the Compasy’s iduswry wed should sot be
considersd in Wolstion of as ¢ substioue for et lacome, cash bom opersnag KTTIGES or olter meamaws of bquidiy dewrmmed @
sccoriance with penerilly scoepled KCCOURLNG priscipies

Led] _*l“‘.m..#_wwﬂl*hﬂu-h
wﬂ__“-“l‘d--#“l-h"M'lmﬂ
Analysis of Pinsacial Condition snd Rl of Opsnitions—Overvies.”
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Note on forward-looking statements

This Annual Report contains certain forwand-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, a3 amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, s amended,
including statements regarding expected future revenue from delayed proportional retum traffic from foreign
partners pursuant 10 certa’n operating agreements. Forward-looking statements are statements other than
historical information or statements of cument coadition. Some forward-looking statements may be identified by
use of erms such as “'believes,” “‘anticipates,” “plans.’’ *‘intends’* or “‘expects.”’ These forward-looking
statements relate to the plans, objectives and expectations of Pacific Gateway regarding its future operations or
financial performance or related to the Company's expectations regarding the telecommunications industry. In
light of the inherent risks and uncertainties of any forward-looking statement, the inclusion of forward-looking
statements in this report should not be regarded as a representation by the Company or any other person that the
forward-locking statements will come true. The revenues and results of operations of the Company, and the
future developments ia the telecominunications industry are difficult to forecast and could differ materially from
those projected in the forwand-looking statements as a result of numerous factors, including the following: (i)
changes in international settement rates; (il) changes in the ratios betwssa outgoing and incoming traffic; (iii)
foreign currency fluctuations; (iv) termination of certain opersting agreements or insbility 1o enter into additional
openiting agreements; (v) inaccuracies in the Company's forecasts of traffic; (vi) changes in or developments
under domestic or foreign laws, regulations, licensing requiremcnts or telecommunications standards; (vii)
foreign political or economic instability; (viii) changes in the availability of transmission facilities, such as
undersea fiber optic cable; (ix) loss of the services of key officers, such as Howard A. Neckowitz, Chairman of
the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer or Gail E. Granton, Exscutive Vice President, International
Business Development and S« retary; (x) loss of a customer which provides significant revenues 10 the
Company; (xi) highly competitive market conditions in the industry; (xil) future management decisions
regarding, for example, acquisitions, capital expenditures or financings (xili) concentration of credit risk or (xiv)
natural disasters and catastrophic events. The foregoing review of important facton locluding those discussed in
detail below should not be construed as exhaustive; the Company undertakes no obligation 1o release publicly
the results of any future revisions it may make to forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances
after the date hereof or to reflect the ocowrmence of unanticipated events.

Overview

Pacific Gatewsy was founded in August 1991 10 capitalize oo the significant growth opportunities in the
international telecommunications services market. The Company operates an international network consisting of
international and domestic switching facilities in the U.S in New York, Los Angeles, and Dallas and offshore in
the United Kingdom, New Zealand and Russia. The Company has partial ownership interests in 17 digital
undersea fiber optic cables systems in the Atlantic, Pacific and Caribbean regions and operating agreements with
foreign carriers that provide for the exchangs of telecommunications traffic. As of December 31, 1997, the
Company had 43 operating agreements in 28 countries around the world, which provide for the exchange of
telecommunications traffic with thess carriers. The Company's revenues are derived primarily from the sale of
international telecommunications services 1o US.-based carriers oa a wholesale basis and from the wnaffic
received by the Company under operating agreements with its foreign partners. ln addition, the Company has
begun o recognize revenue from retail customens genersied by Piatouch the Company’s joiat venture with Globe
Telecom.

The majority of the Company’s costs are variable and consist of payments to foreign parmers for the
termination of traffic, payments to other providers of long distance services for ransmistion services to countries
where the Company does not have operating agreements, payments 10 domestic carrien for the wrmination of
oveneas-originated waffic in the United States where the Company does not have its own domestic network and

5




1o local exchange companies for access charges for originating and terminating international and
traffic where the Company has its own domestic network. The Company generally enters new markets
operating agreements with foreign partners and by investing in or leasing digital undersea fiber
cable in order 10 cost effectively carry and terminate traffic. The Company seeks 10 have ownership
in cable systems where it believes its customen’ demand will jusufy the investment in those fixed
assets. Although the Company is generally able 10 earn a higher gross margin on raffic routed through its owned
circuits relative to leased routes, Pacific Gatewsy will continue to buy usage-sensitive Uransmission capacity on a
wmmmmu;mwmmmmmmu:
relatively low or inconsistent, as well as 10 manage overflow traffic on busy routes.

Under its operating agreements, the Company typically agrees to send U.S.-originated maffic (o its foreign
parters and its foreign partners agree 10 sead 8 proportionate amount of return traffic via the Company's network
luﬂhﬂmh”uﬂtﬂﬁrﬂﬂhhﬁpmﬂmmhpﬂhﬂh
FCC, whereby traffic from the foreign country is routed to US.-based international carriers, such as the
Company, in the same proportion as traffic carried into the foreign country. The Company sad its foreign partnens
Mmh“nﬂn-ﬂﬂrhﬂm-uhﬁwuhwdmm.

The Company records the amount due 10 the foreign partners as an expease in the period the Company s traffic
is delivered.

1

H

Of the Company's opersting agreements in service as of December 31, 1997, |8 agreements provide that
hMmﬂwu#“hhMMthnﬁ;m#w
p:hdhumhonpnﬂﬂmntus.uwn&dh:mﬁndhpmﬂoudmm
enables the carriers to determine the appropriate traffic exchange ratio based oa the Company's relative market

associated return traffic on & six-month delayed basis. The rates that the Company charges its customers are
established at a level such that the Company expects (o recognize a gross profit oa the combined transactions.

The following table sets forth income statement data a3 a percentage of revenues for the period indicated.
Year Ended Decsmber 11,

1997 1 1994
TOW] PEVEDUEE . . . . coivuvanssssssssnnpnpisinsnnsanissnnns 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of long Aistance services ,........c.coivvimanraisiaies 85.1% B64%m B6A%
Gross margin . . ..o.oo00s e R A R A R 149% 136% 13.2%
Selling, general and administrative expenses ..............00. 71.2% 6% 11%
Deprocistion ...oosvrersssssorissarassassrasscasransssss 1.8% 13% 1.5%
Total Operating EXPenses . ........ccoveisrarssssnssses 9.0% 5.1% 8.7%
Oporsting IBCOMS .. ...ovcvnnsrssnrosnnnssasssssnsans 1.5% 55% 43%
Other (InCOMeYEXPEDILS, BEY . . .. uouvvaueescissanrarsrnsses 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Interest (IDCOMS)YOXPENIE, BOL . ... ocvvivarseisnrariassaress (0.7T%) (03%) 07%
Incoms before IBCOME LAXEE .. ...coocviviramnsranssssns 6.6% 6.0% 1%
Proviston for IDOOMS XS . . . .. .cvvvsissrarsressarasasnnas 1.4% 14% 1.5%
NSt IROOIS . ciioouvasnsunsnnninansisasrssisnasbnntns 43% 1.6% 11%
I ] BT

Year Ended December 31, 1997 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 1996.

Revenues: Total revenues in 1997 increased §3.8% to $298.6 million from $162.4 millioa in 1996. The
increase was primarily the result of an active U.S, market and growth of the Company's offshore sites in the
UK., Russia and New Zealand, Sales 10 existing customers increased as the number of operaling agreements




grew to 43 at December 31, 1997 from 30 st December 31, 1996. The total number of customers worldwide
increased to 125 at December 31, 1997 from 75 at December 31, 1996. As a result. total minutes have increased
82'% from last year while the average price per minute charged to customers remained unchanged at 29 cents.
Du. ing 1997 prices gencrally declined in the markets in which the Company principally operates and may decline
further in the future. However, the Company’s average price per minute remained unchanged from 1996 because
mmywuﬂhmwh“mmmmMﬂmhmm
mmmsmmﬁfmmwmmmhhMMMhmmm
mdmnmmummummmuwums“ﬁmmmm.m
factors influencing the average customer pric. per minute.

Gross margin: Gross margin as & percentage of revenues increased from 13.6% in the prior year 1o 14.9%
mnmmﬂu.pmurmmmwﬂﬂhwmmmmn:mmuu
mmlmmmhmmumuﬂummmmm:mimm resulted in
mmwhmmumwmummmwwm
rmdpwﬁummuhhh_ruhﬂcwwu-ﬂnumhhumm
ﬁulﬁn;nmh:uuﬂvﬂﬂuﬁaun_.m.hﬂttmnﬁmmufmnp
mﬂmilmhﬂ&mhm.ﬁdhh;muhpmmtmy‘lpmmuﬁnmiudmm

Gmm;ﬁunmdmnhu“hunmﬂhﬂuﬂmwymh
Company's revenues increased significantly from $114.6 million for the first half of 1997 1o $184.0 million for
the second half of 1997, Significant revenue increases generally reduce the Company's shori-lerm gross margin
for two reasons, which again ook effect in the second half of 1997. First. to terminate the additional tralfic
:mm!.hcmmyhm:hmdm-wh:dkﬂuﬂmuuj. network. Second,
mﬂnchmhmmlmum#hlumnmduﬂmhumﬁm
mghu:ustmm.m:ﬂu:mﬂ:mmntwmwﬂhmmy beging 10
terminate the new traffic more efficiently, by this margin improvement may be offset in future penods sharp
revenue uumumnhhmm'mﬂﬂummmmdmmmm +of
long distance service increased to $254.1 million for the year ended December 31, 1997 from $140.3 mu.
December 31, 1996.

Selling General ond Administrative Expenses: As a percenlage of revenues, selling. ge-- -
mwv:mﬂ“ﬂmiﬂhhwmwTMuhmmmlh-umﬂ expense.
increased 92.7% to $21.4 million from $11.1 million. This increase was due primarily 10 increased persoi.iel as
mmenlewmﬁﬁmmm‘ermﬂmiMMWmmiumumt}
owned Russian subsidiary at December 31, 1997 from 49 at Decembe: 11, 1996. In addition, the Company
incurred higher sales commission expenses due t0 increased revenues.

Deprecicrion: Depreciation increased 165% w0 $5.4 million in 1997 from $2.0 million in 1996
representing 1.8% of 1997 wotal revenues. The increase in the dollar amount was primanly due to depreciation of
additional transmission facilities acquired during 1997.

Interest (income) expense, ner:  |nterest income increased 127% to $2.0 million ia 1997 from $0.9 million
in 1m.mm-nmhuhw1munluﬂ#immmm in cash or cash
equivalents during 1997 as compared 10 on sverage $13 million in cash or cash equivalents during | 996.

Income Tar: Income taxes increased to $7.3 million from $3.9 million, primanly due o increased
mmmmﬂnmmmmhlmdﬂiuIm.mmmutﬂncuum

raie was atributable to eamings of cerain pon-U.5, subsidiaries. A portion of these earnings are intended 10 be
reinvested (ndefinitely in operations outside the U.S.

Year Ended December 31, 1996 Compared 1o Year Ended December 11, 1995.

Revenues: Total revenues in 1996 increased 113% w0 $162.4 million from $76.4 million in 1993, The
lmmwummuﬂruumkdmwnhnnuﬂum.ﬂmminmmmu:numbtr
dmmmm!ﬂnhﬂu!hlmhll ai December 31, 1995 and a T0% increase in the
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Eiiuﬂimﬁ.ﬁuiirﬁiiﬁvl%g&!; ghtly
declined to 29 cents compared to 30 cents in 199 The revenue from Matrix increased to $20.5 million,

of revenue, in 1996 from million, or 22.5 revenue, in 1999, See Note (5) in the Notes 1o Consolidated
_"EEEFEFEE-EE.?HEEEEEEE:
transactions with Matrix.

Gross margin: Gross margin increased 119.3% 10 $22.1 million 996 from $10.1 million in 19935, As
percentage of revenve, gross margin increased from 13.2% o 993 6% in 1996, This increase resulted
g%%nﬂ-:ﬁﬂiriiﬂi—riﬂ?is&igunﬁa
have iii-%ﬁigﬁgiﬁgrifg
E-EEEE-EFEEEEFEEEEE
EEEESIEEIE‘IIEEEEE!@EE
%Ii!‘l‘?ﬁtii%i!!&u%-ﬂ?i&
December 996 from $66.3 million st December 31, 1995, This increase in costs represented growth
EEE!!E%FER%E%%E
increase ii%%gﬂﬂu%lliur.;

Selling General and Administretive Expemses: E-ER;EEPE-E
administrative expenses decreased from 7.2% in 1995 1o 6.8% in 1996 and the actual expenses increased 103.3%
Eu:._%gﬂhlﬁﬂgiitﬂrﬂl&!i‘ﬁiﬁﬁf%
HEEEIE.EIEHEEEEIII%E&:%
E..i:ﬂuﬂlﬂ!l&lur-ﬁ.?EFEEEiHEEE
increased revenuss.

¢preciation: Depreciation increased 82% to $1.0 million 996 from million in 1995. As a
EiE%i.uﬁﬂiﬁ?ﬂl&gﬂwﬂ 996, and 1.5% in
1995 ?EF?EEIEEE%EEEEE
acquired during 1996.

Interest {income) expenie, net EEEEEEEﬁEEEE_En%E
Eilﬁ%rﬁ&?tﬂ&:ﬂ&-i%l! tial public offering
lu&_igsﬂEEEhEliﬂgiﬁgﬂEﬁii
EIEE._iisu:ﬂ:ﬁnlﬂl!ﬁ:unﬁﬁnnﬂf&nﬂﬁli
credit available w the Company at December

Income Tax: Income laxes increased million from $1.2 million, primarily due 10 increased
operating income. The effective tax rate was 40% in 1996 and 39.3% in 1993 !
Liquidity and Capital Resources

?Eiiiiigﬁigigﬂiwu
EE?EFEEE%!?E%E.&?BEE
EF'EI‘!IE&..EEEEEEEEE
ig.egligragiligggrfnﬁiﬁ.
ﬁiﬁgimﬂifg the Company's accounts paysble turmover is

EE%EE%EEE%FEEEE _____ .
from $13.9 million and 57.4 million for the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995. The increases in 1597
.ﬁn .

.i.iE.i&t:EE!ilI=:ﬁaﬁ.i§tEEE
increases in accounts receivable.




Met cash used in investing activities incressed to $36.5 .aillion in 1997, from §18.4 million in 1996 and
$6.5 million in 1995. The expenditures in all three years were primarily for the acquisition of partial ownership
interests in international fiber optic cable transmission systems and related equipment

Net cash provided by financing activities was $0.5 million in 1997, $44.3 million in 1996 and $0.9 millica
inIM;D&HHMM\!IMHCmrmhndmidﬁﬂpblhuﬂmﬂﬁmtﬂ!ﬂm
of Common Stcek, of which 4,940,050 shares were offered by the Company, which provided the Company with
net proceeds of spproximately $54.1 million. The Company used $3.3 million of the proceeds (o repay an
outstanding line of credit with & major shareholder of the Company.

mmumwmmum:mn.1mw-m3mu-ﬂ:tm
$10.5 million at December 31, 1996 and $7.7 million at December 31, 1995, This is due to the significant delay
umhmmummhh“mwmﬂdmﬂmmnm
offset by the estimated retum traffic revenue backlog of $10.7 million at December 31,1997, compared w
$11.7 million at December 31, 1996 and $6.1 million at December 31, 1995.

At December 31, 1997, the Company had outstanding commitments of $11.8 million for the acquisition of
additional ownership in digital undersea fiber optic cables and network equipment. The Company believes that
existing cash balances, together with cash provided by operating activities and other sources of liquidity, will be
sufficient 1o mest its outstanding capital commitments, current capital expenditures and working capital needs
wuuﬂlmw.ucmmmmmmmdmum
mﬂiﬂﬂuhﬂmummwmmmbﬁwunw
to the Company.

Impact of the Year 2000

mcMh-dpdmmumm:mmmeum
their ability 1o process transactions in the Year 2000. The Company is still in the process of determining the
extent of systems modifications and/or computer software upgrades needed to ensure the systems will properly
utilize dates beyond December 31, 1999, The Company has not yet determined the total cost of such
modifications sad/or upgrades.




ITEM & mmnnmmimmwu DATA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Tohlﬂﬂbhﬂlﬂm
of Pacific Gaiewsy Exchange, Inc.

w-mmumwmmammw.u.u
w-dmn.IMdHﬁ.uﬂurﬂﬂmﬂdmmhﬂuﬂw
'muu:thnllhl'wuﬂdhmmhhﬂhﬂmﬂwn.lm.ﬂﬂmmm
ummmwuutwdummnmauﬂumnmm
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PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{ln thousands)
December 31,
1997 1994
: ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash oqUIVAMDLE & . couvisiniriioarariararsrrsrsiriisaisirisasnes 5 43830 § 4556)
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2.230 in 1997 and
3167T9in1996.......... LAt R A R gy Sy 62313 25,145
Accounts receivable, related PRItY .. .. ..o iiiiiiii i i - 1,066
i e b B AL 65 B AR s R e T 511 129
BRI BRI = v a's e o St 8 W B W R A R 1,096 1184
ONHEr COrTEDl BEIIEE , o« o s s nnsmsnensrnassssarsbsssnssasspsbinassnsrsnannes a7 —
Total current BSOS .. .. ..ovvoviiiirnns R R L N e 108,443 75,687
Property and Equipment:
Undersea fiber optic cables . . .. ....ocvvnviiiiiiiarnammiinissstiaiasanini 3,044 13393
distance cOmMmMUNICAIONS SQUIPMEDE ... ... vieiiiiiiiiaia i 30533 13,744
Computers and office OQUIPMEBE . . . o vvvvrirririnrrrssniisriasarsresassiiiis 634 117
Leasehold improvements ...........:.. A i e e R T 0 a8
Construction in progress . . .. ... ey ey S P i e i | 849 1837
70573 31,336
Less sccumulated depreciation 9,140 3,700
Total property and eqUIPIIEnL, BEL . . . ..o vvveiernsmnrrrrarniriinesss 61,433 17,636
Deposits and OMSr MBS ... ocoucviriniriasssasssnrasasssssssnsarsassssisns 1,741 493
O IIBIUE 5550 5vnsihabnsnssannsnsbasnstnnnnsessssnsssssssnpes $171,617 $103.816
el prite—
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Lisbilities:
Accounts PAYSDIE . ....uiciiiainssnnsranasisrasaniiisitasararasasaarianns $ 87949 § M64T2
Accrond HabIUOes . .. .. ocvvorrosssssanssnssasssannannsrasisisssrsssssianes 3™ 1,304
Income tAXes PRYBBIE . ... ..ovrvrrsnanrinsssrarasnsisiiaraiiirranrirsasanes 1,491 1493
Current portion of capitalized leass obligations .................coviiiiiiiann, 216 —
Onher Habilihas . ... covossinsasssstssnansarssasnsrrosnsssssnnassannsnsssns 513 7
Total corrent Habilithes . . ..cocorarrarcironeis crossassnnnaisnersnny 93,502 40,636
Long-erm portion of capitalized lease obligatons . . .......occiivivrivriiaiinies 185 —
Deferred IDCOME AX ... ..couvssrsanssrsssssssssssrasssssnrarssssssssssssns 957 708
TRl BODEBMIRE. & s v csvoniibonesabanisiiadaussinesaniidraetasssnne 95,044 41344
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7).
Stockholders’
Preferred stock, | par value, authorized 5,000,000 shares, no shares issued . .. . . - -
Common stock, $.0001 par value, suthorized 50,000,000, issued 19,216,710,
I!.ﬂ'ﬂ,l!ﬁﬂuuh 1997; and issued 19,040,050, outstanding
IBB0E 490 shares In 1996 ... ....ovvivversrrssarsncsnansnsnnmannnrranatns 2 2
Additional paid in CapIAl + . oo cuvnaaiiiiiiiiiaaiiiiii i 60,849 55113
Deferred T i A . I — (4,134) —_
Foreign curmency RnSIMIon , . .. «oovsrsriinerssssinisiisisinssssssnrnasnssis 2 —
Rotained SAMIBES . ..o covrermaninisissuisairirianssasississsnasbassenstasss 20,254 1,157
Cudmnﬂhuhm IHMMHIM-&IH .......... (400) (400)
Total SOCKROMINS” OQUIY ... ..oiiienirisrarsarerassnrsnansrssienas 76,573 62,472
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 5171617 $103,816
e ] e

Sco Accompanying Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(in thousands, except per share data)
Your Ended Decsmber 11,
197 2] 1994
REVEDUES ..o /uviesvsrsnss sy R R $208.609  S141912 559250
Revenues—related PRITY . ...cciooieerisisssansnssssassssnisnnnns — 20514 17,166
Total FOVEDEEE . .o ovssssvsnsrsrsrrasansannsasssssnnnns 298,609 162,426 76,416
Cost of long distance servICes. . ..., ...ooovmanreerraarnranaione. 154,076 140,340 66,146
Oross MM .. ..ovvvvvuiasiiaiesatasnsissrrssrinianis 44533 21,086 10,070
Selling, general and administrative €XPEnses . ..........o1s S Eee e 21,416 11,113 5,467
DEPrECIMION . . . ccousnvssssrasssssssssnsssssssnisisssssnsssssss 5417 2,044 1,124
Total operating expenses...... T e T P A T T 26,833 13,157 6,591
Operating I0COME ... .oovrviissiasaninisiasaisnariisns 17,700 8929 34
Interest (IDCOME) EXPEAIL, BOL .. ......cocuvsssnrrsnrsansras WA (2.009) (885) L3 ]
Other (ICOMB) SXPEDIS, DL . .. .« .o rvsnnrsrsnsiinisesisrarasess (126) 129 -
Income before INCOME LAXES . . .......0ovnvrinrseiirrisniiine 19,835 9,685 2,941
Provision for iDCOME CAXES .. ..covvvvrrrrisiissinssnrsrnsssssssns 7308 3T 1,155
INGL LDCOMM & ¢ s+ s svsssnsnnannnsasssassronsnrsnnnssnatns 5 12,497 5 5808 51,786
MNet income per share—DbagiC ....ovicanreniiaiiiiiiiiines $ 066 5 03 § 013
Net income per share—diluted ... ... A S A $ 064 S 034 § 012
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding-—basic. ... . 18,960 16,234 14,100
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding—diluted . . ... 19,497 16,872 14,535
| =i e s

See Accompanying Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Statemeats.
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PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
Yeur Esded Decomber 11,
[ [ 1994
Operating Activities:
Mot IOOME . .. sooncsirsnsnnsnaisinsnsaneravissanssssasnes SI97 8 5808 $1.78¢
Adjpustments 10 pet income:
Depreciation . ......... B s waie LA NG M B R e 5417 2,044 1,124
Loss on sale of stock ....... S8 4 A R S A R R R TR — 129 —
Stock COMPENSMION BXPEBIL . . . . ... oovvisivvrnserssssnnnsnsasssns 146 85 —
Bad debts provision .. .....0 o caees PR Y 2173 853 687
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Mmuu---u--u.; ---------------------------- I“ﬂ'} tt]uull ﬁim}
Accounts receivable, relsted party ...........o00iiiieiiniiieianns 3,066 196 (1,059)
Notes snd advances meceivable .. ........o.cvvviiivirnianannane — 175 (175)
Propald eXPOBSeS ... .oovrieriienrsrisirisrsssssntosrnsnrnnass 06 (729) —
Deferred L ML ..... o000 iucassissrssrssrssssssssasnsnsnsas 4] (816) (314)
Deposits and OMer MBIBEE . .......ccuviuiniesriisarensiaiiiinis (1,430 (1om (143)
ACCOURES PRYEDIE . oo v havsiiiivaiiiaariiiain s iisarains 48,309 17,053 12,782
Accroed Uabilithes ........0ovinmieriirmeiiriaiiniusasnannssnss 2429 532 700
Fedenal income taxes payable (recoverable) ........c.covvvannnonas (462) 1.758 790
Or BRI . . . . o onsvssssnssnssrrsnininssnpsrnrsanannnians 150 (1352) 519
Deforred tax Habilly « . .coveeiainianiainiiiasniiananiersnnsonis 249 488 220
Net cash provided by operating activithes ...........cco0vmmermranaras 34,157 13,898 7381
Investing Activithes:
Purchase of property and equIpment . ........ccoviiiiniisiiiiiinines (36,725) (18,669 (7.233)
Other investing activithes . . ........ccoviivirirniiirisssrassinnsnires pre] 174 02
Net cash used in iovesting activithes . ..........ccocvviiiiianiiiininies (36,503) (18.39%)  (6331)
Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock .......ovvvviiiiiiiniaiiiiaes - 55,130 —
Payment of IssUSncs COMB. .v.ivaviereriiiniiarasiaisnasssinisssans — {1,042) —
Payment 10 acquire Teasury $0CK .. ..ccuvinisiaississsiansnisaasssss — (400) —
Borrowings on revolving inesof oredt. ... ... .00 vinnriiiiiiiiinn —_ 3,200 4,000
Repayments oo revolving lines of credit ......ccc0vevvivariivaviinanss — (6,200 (3,067
Borrowings on revolving lines of credit, related party ................... - 3,000 -
Repayments on revolving lines of credit, related pasty . ......0c0vvevnenn - (5.4200 .-
Exarcise of $tock OpOnS. . oo vssoissniasssnsranssrsisransasiisssess 742 - —
Repayments oo capital lease obligations .............cociiinuunn. {209) - —
Net cash provided by financing activities. ............ocvviivnciiinans 533 438,268 933
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents .. ............c000vvvirannnens (1.713) 43,7171 1,783
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period. .. .. ...........o.... 43,563 1,792 10
Cash and cash equivalests tend of the perdod . .. .......cccvivivcnnnn $43.850  348.56) 1.9
Supplementary Information:
Interestpald during perdod .. ......c..c.cvvivrircsrsisrsrsssrsnsnnns 5 - $ 276 § 576
Income taxes paid GUring PEHIOD. . . ... ....oeounnsrsnnesasssseesanions $7841  $2447 8 6B)

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(ln thousands)
Shares Amousi .H m Trasslstioa Shares Amousi  Total
Balasce December 31, 1584 .. .. 35 5= § 3} = — L L)) — §— 1 1,108
0 o | ok wplil. e 1448 | m - —_ -— - -t e
Mt OCCEE . v v ssssrrasasnssannn — ; — - T 1.788 -, L 1.784
Balance Decomber 31, 1998 ...... 14100 | 41 - - 1540 — - i
m‘_d.uuu —-— — —_— = — —_ "“] I.'m ‘m]
Lassance of commen sock, ant of
‘I“__lrltill-l!'! ‘.” i sapm7 el - = el 4088
Suxk option comprasation FLpeSE . - — L] - - - - - [ L]
MNet IBCOmS . ..ovnvvsssssansnnnss - - - - Rt 1800 = - 1.4
Balance December 31, 1994 . 19.040 1 35113 11 (14 (400)  ELAT2
Sk opooes exercised . . o - ™ - - - L — 741
suaﬂ-#_ -_ - (£ - - - - — 148
Tax offect 0o mock oplicn exsrciss . —_— —_ T4 - - - =3 = 714
Reawicied sk compesisnog
ﬂ_ FREEEEEEE AR AR AR ] A— - ‘l‘" -— — — — —_ *IH
Dcll'ldu-—du « mestricaed
AR anadi m - —_ (4,138 - - - —_ {134y
Hnlpqﬂﬂrﬂh ....... — — - i - - — 1
Nl \BOODN . .o cossrssnnnsnssssass _ gt — - _.: L7 ':'_ oarart] 1Le57
Balssss Decomber 31, 1997 ...... 9217 § 1 a0 4 §(4134) 512 20284 (&) N 3765
RIS = el —_—— == === EEEENE STE—=
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PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) The Company and Significant Accounting Policies
Descriprion of Business and Organizadion:

Pacific Gateway Exchange, Inc. (*Pacific Gateway'' or the *'Company’’), a Delaware corporation, owns
and operates an intemational switched and domestic switched telecommunications network. The operations of
Pacific Gateway have grown significantly as the result of entering into sulitional operating agreements with
foreign partners and marketing to certain long distance companies in the United States which do not have their
own intermational network.

The Company is subject 10 various risks in coonection with the operation of its business. These risks
munumummmuwmmm

Principles of Consolidation:

Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Pacific Osteway and majority-owned and
controlled subsidiaries principally in the United Kingdom, Russia, Mew Zealand, Bermuda and Cyprus.
lavestments in 20% 10 50%-owned or affilisted are accounted for on the equity method. Intercompany
transactions have been climinated.

Foreign Currency Translasion:

Assets and liabilities of - perations outside the United States, except for operations in highly inflationary
economies (principally in Russia) are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate in effect at cach period
end, Revenues and expenses are translated st the avernge exchange mie prevailing during the period. The effects
of foreign currency translation adjustments arising from differences in exchange rates from period to period are
deferred and included as & component of "'Siockholders’ Equity'. The effects of foreign currency transactions,
and of remeasuring the financial position and resuits of operations in the functiosal currency, are inchuded in
**Selling general and administrative expenses.”’ Operations in highly inflatiooary economies are maintained in
the reporting currency, U.S. dollar.

Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management (0 make cstimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Liabilities and
disclosures of continpent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and repored amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reponed periods. Actual resubts could differ from those estime=tes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash equivalents consist primarily of money market accounts and called bonds with maturities of three
months or less. The carrying emount reported in the accompanying balance sheet approvimates fair market value.
Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment are stated &t cost. Depreciation is provided for financial reporting purposes using
the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Undersea fiber optic cables . . .....cvvvvnuriivinriissrnrsenansiniseiin 20 years
Long distance communications equipment . .. oo v vvirvsirrenriiniiiisiis 5-7 yeans
Computers and office equIPMent ...............ccoivvvnianieiasnsiisnns 4.7 years
Leasehold Improvemesits .......cocvveveriarmnnisssssssirissinaninns term of lease




PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Maintensnce and repairs are expensed as incurred. Replacements ard betierments are capitalized. The comt
and related accuinulaied depreciation of assets sold or retired are removed from the account balance, and any
resulting gain or loss is reflected in results of operations.

Income Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standardy
(**SFAS'") No. 109, **Accounting for Income Taxes.'' SFAS No. 109 has as its basic objective the recognition
of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities based upoa all events that have been recognized in the
financial statements as measused by the provisions of the enacted tax laws.

Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the estimated amount

1o be realized. Income tax expense represents the tax payable for the curmment period and the change dunng the
period in the deferred tax assets and labilities.

Revenus Recognition:
Revenues for telecommunications services provided to customers ae recognired as services are rendered.
Reveoues for retarn taffic received according to the terms of the Company’s opersting agreements with its
foreign partners are recognized as revenue as the return traffic is received.

Earnings Per Share:

The Company adoptad SFAS No. 128 ""Eamnings Per Share'" effective December 31, 1997, In accordance
with SFAS No. 128, basi ecamings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted-average
number of shares cutstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period plus the dilutive effect of stock options
determined using the treasury stock method. The eamings per share calculation has been adjusted for all periods
presented 1o reflect the 940 to 1 stock split effected October 20, 1993,

There were no adjustments 1o net income in the calculation of Lasic and diluled eamnings per share for the
years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1993, respectively. The reconcilistion of the weighted average shares
outstanding used in calculating basic and diluted exmings per share is as follows:

hn-lhu-h-hn

1997
Basic EPS:
Income available 1o common stockholders. . ...... $12,497.000 | 8,960,000 $0.66
Effect of dilutive stock opthons . . .....vvvevann .. 537,000
DOubed BB . ..cvcnivsrarsnnarensnsessisnss $12,497,000 19,497,000 $0.64
1996
Basic EPS:
Income available to common stockholders........ $ 5808000 16,234,000 3036
Effect of dilutive siock opthons .. ............... 638,000

- Diluted EPS . .....00vcvvivnrarannarnanarasss $ 5808000 16,872,000 $0.34
1995
Basic EPS:
Income available o common stockbolders .. ...... $ 1,786,000 14,100,000 $0.13
Effect of dilutive stock optioas ....... | 435,000

DButed BPE....cooov0ciiiinnsnanninariansns § 1,786,000  14.535,000 $0.12




PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Fair Value of Financial Imsoruments;
mmmhmmﬂmmmmuwmumvm.

Concentration of Credit Risk:

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist of cash
and cash equivalents, and accounts receivable. At December 31, 1997 and 1996, the Company had bank deposits
in excess of federally insured limits of 54,650,000 and $45,381,000, respectively. Seven of the Company’s
wmwmmuiuﬂwmmﬁudmn.lmm
lﬁﬁ.nqudnlyﬂhtmwhmmﬂh.nﬂlnmﬂthmupnﬂumn
mmwhuﬂumnmwmmm‘unﬂmhwmhhﬂu
current market conditions. Losses on uncollectible accounts have consistently been within management’s
expectations.

Financial Statement Classifications:

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified 10 conform to the 1997 financial statement presentation.
Such reclassifications have no effect on net income as previously reponed.

(2} Accounting for International Long Distance Traffic

mmumummmummmmnm
under which international long distance traffic is both delivered and received. Under these agreements, the
foreign carriers are contra*ually obligated to adhere to the policy of the Federal Communications ~~mmission
(the *-m'a.mmwhmwunmnmmmmucmm
hhmmﬂmumﬂ:mﬂhﬂhm.umwmmumm
foreign carriers is settled through a formal settlement policy that genenally exteads over a six-moath period at an
wmmmmmumuuﬂuwwu-mhumh
traffic is delivered. Of the 43 agreements the Company had s December 31, 1997, 18 agreements provided that
the Company generally must wait up to six moaths befor it actuaily receives the proportional return traffic.
umﬁmmhmmnhﬂmhpﬂhﬂukmluﬂm;
customer because the amount due 1o the foreign parter snenlly exceeds the amount the Company charges its
customerz. As a result, a significant increase in traffic with ¢ or more of the carriers with which the Company
ﬂﬂwuﬁﬂuﬂHmmmmﬁmnmluhﬂhmm
mhmmmmumuy.m“mmum-dm the future period, the
M_ﬂy“nﬂ#uhmnﬂﬂﬂmﬁnﬂﬂthpﬁpﬁm
on the outbound traffic, results in & gross profit on the total transaction. In circumstances whore the Company
does pot receive the return traffic due from the foreign par ner at the end of the agreed-upon delayed retum
mmm-dhwmmq—mud-nuﬁmm“hcﬂmﬂwm
return traffic pot received, through preater return traffic in fun. & periods, or a reduction (o the Company's current
accounts paysble balance. Although the Company can reasonably estimate the revenue it will recoive under the
F&'lpﬂpﬂhﬂhpﬂlﬁphﬁhuﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂhtﬂ:hﬂﬂdﬂﬂhﬂﬁ-ﬂm
or what impact changes in future settlement rates will have or net payments made and revenue received.

k1




PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Coatinued)

The tax effect of significant temporary differences, which comprise the deferred tax assets and liabilines,

are as follows:
: Your Eoded Decemt= )1,

19T L 194
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for dobtful accounts . .. .......ccvnaoe $ 696831 5 861,768 3325613
SLBE KAKES . « o+ vssssassssnssssssssasnsnnnnnnss 316574 210,647 —
o RSPy 81,088 111548 41,185
Total gross defermed tAX assets. .. ......ovvvvrinsn $1,096,492 $1,182963 $367,794
Deferred Labilities:
Deprociation .. ..cocxvusrransrrnsansnnesiasans § 870566 § 707518 35219551
BT ... icsnssasnssssannaassussssssnssendiss 85811 — —_—
Total gross deferred tax lisbilities . .............00 § 956377 § 707518 5219351
P s
Met defermed Lax MABEL8 . ... ..o cnverrarasninanas $ 140,115 § 476,445 5148247
= ] == ] B

(4) Acquisition of Rusteinet

MIm.hme-mwmmm:wHuﬂMHm
mmuummmmwmhwmwwummm
rmhﬂqudmﬂhnqﬂﬁhﬂuuhnbmhhﬂdhhmmm financial
wmhuﬂgmmm-um-mmummmmdmmm
at the time. The fair value of net liabilities acquired in the acquisition was $158,000. The excess of purchase
mmumm-mmrmdﬂnmuummiuw. Goodwill is being
amortized on & straight-line basis over a 10-year period.

(5) Related Party Transactions

mmwﬂmmmm-mmmmm
Telecom, Inc. (**Matrix'"), which is a swiichless reseller In 1996 and 1995, a significant (greater than 10%)
wunmum:mmamamsmumum
mmmmmmnmmmn.lmm 1999, In 1997, the
shareholder sold shares of the Company’s common stock and currenty owns less than 10%. Accordingly,
MMHMHEMWHNMMM

mmlm.ucmmmmummm.mmvmd
approximately $702,000, of & customer &s payment for accounts receivable totaling $702,000. The Company then
sold this stock o a significant shareholder for $702,000. The shareholder subsequeatly sold the stock aver
period of severdl months for & total of $730,000.

nmmuwﬂmu{—muhc@qmmmmm
Wm-tnnmmdm&m';mamummm
were sold by management to the Company for $13,000.




PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—{Continued)

(6) Segment Data
The classifies its into ooe industry segment, telecommunications services. Export sales
were 383,875 $46,522,000, and 517,619,000 for the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995
respectively. Export sales by geographic area were a3 follows:
Your Eaded December 31,
197 =) 1998
PaciBe RIBD .....coconvesmiisssnnsnsnss $22577,000  $20,653,000  $10,066,000
EUIOPE +..cvavansssasnsssansnnansannes 44,292,000 17,134,000 4,798,000
CROBMAR . . .ovancnsisnssnnnnassasassesss 11015000 6,445,000 2,418,000
OBF oorermnasssssnrsasssrssrnsnsae 5,991,000 2,186,000 337,000
Total export sales .....c.ocivvrnirernans $81875,000 546,522,000  $17.619,000
fo R E—— BT === —=rel
The Company's domestic and foreign operations are as follows:
United Siste (hiber Hﬁ: Coasolidated
1997
Sales 10 unaffilisted CuslOmMErs ....civunann $180,870,000 S§17,739,000 § —  $298.609,000
Sales and transfers between geographic areas 12,066,000 12,005,000 (24,071,000 —
Total saled. ...ovvevnrarssnssssanes veess $292936,000 329,744,000  $(24,071,000) $298,609,000
Operating income ........... PR R $ 15720000 § 1,193,000 § (42,000) $ 16,871,000
Identifiable ROSets .. .. .....ccconnuransses $183,312,000 $32.542.000 $(36,869,000) $178,985,000
e !, LEl EmpEe—i= 12 = — ——_ —=-___|
1996
Sales to unaffilisted customers .....co00000 $141912000 § - 3 —  $141.912,000
Sales and transfers between geogrphic areas = — — —
Tolal SIS .. .oovvvsssssssssasssnrasanis $141912,000 § — 5 —  $141912,000
Operating income .. ......cooavriainarenn § 8929000 5 e — § 8,929,000
Identifiable BEOELE . .. oo oo rarinsranarrs eese $103,81600C 3 — 3 —  $103,816,000
RS L3 _pm = S S L= ] B e
1993
Sales 10 unaffilisted CUSIOMETS . ....oovvuis § 59250000 3§ - 3 — § 59.150,000
Sales and transfers between geographic areas — — — =
Total B8ME . . cosesaunsussnsinsssannannss § 59250000 3 — 8 — § 35.250,000
ww'-tllhlaau----i PR R R e I‘ !.mpm ‘ — s —— :‘ ]."ﬂm
Identifiable BESEES . ..o vvorriovrnrrnrranns $ 29976000 § — — § 29.976,000
D T e e T 1= e T S—

mmmmmhhummmhﬂu

United States includes all remaining operations of the Company.
accounted for at cost plus a reasonable profic [dentifisble assets are

each area or segment, including goodwill.

4l

Transfers between

New Zealand and Cyprus.

geographic areas are
those assets identified in the operations in




PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

The Company sells 1o long distance international telecommunications companies, 1o foreign parmers and &0 rewul
customers. Al December 31, 1997, the Company had 43 operating agreements and approximately 125 workdwide
customers. Ter percent or more of the Company's revenues have been derived from the following customens.

Year Eaded Decesmber 11,
1997 1996
Frontier Communications, Inc. £30,996,068 (A) (A)
Matrix Telecom, Inc. See Note J) (A) $20.514,040 517,165,995

(A) Sales were less than 10% of weal sales.

(6) Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

The Company is not curreatly subject 10 any legal proceedings that will have a material impact on the
Company's financial position or results of operations.

Leases
mmmmmummmmwmmmumm
1997, 1996 and 1995 wers $965,000, $255,000 and $142,000, respectively. The Company leases ceriain
mmm-wuhmudu.upmm.mmm:mﬂmm
wilhlmh.lmlmmmlhmdhm.memmIMhmmwt
at December 31, 1997 were $510,000.

Future minimum lease payments under operating and capital leases as of December 31, 1997 are as follows:

R
bemaen
L e T T TTER R 51,040,000 $716,000
BOOD . i vitie s s P A AR R R R 603,000 216,000
11 | R - PP G P R 507,000 8,000
1) R s R PR P I R 1 T 467,000 -
.1+ ¢ S R e SR P SRR R R T T ‘ 437,000 —
TRRTBAIEE o s o uvesunsnsspnmenssstnbsassanisnrsnnsssantss 2,200,000 —_
Total minkmm s PAYmES ... cooovesrrnrarns somarainers $5254,000 $440,000
Amount representing interest ............00 0000 TN N 39,000
Present value of net minimum Payments ........oocarenrnssnes $401,000
CUITent POFYION o4 o vosvarsasssrssssrsntasssrssssasastoynnss $216,000

mmhmmmwmmwmmmmn
nmdlwhmmduﬁw-wﬂhmuummmw
mnw.mmﬂmw.hw'lwmmhm:muh

mkopdmhlﬂhcm-vdhnwmummwmmm
mm'lwmhmhwwllmm‘
Commitments

At December 31, tmummmmummmhmd
mmmwmmmmmmmmm:mugm;wmm.
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PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

{8) Employee Benefit Flans

Eg_ﬂu.ﬂglﬁiﬂgua 1:::!.!!5::155!.35.....
Erisi&lﬁ:&!&tﬁiﬁinﬁ.::iii!ﬂ! Plan to

%iiﬂlﬁﬁlgigiilsuﬂu&qﬁ: any one
EEEERE_gm—I!EEiE the 1999 Plan. The Company
granted options 1o purchase 1,610,000 shares of common stock | 997 under the 1997 plan.
?E%i%iggﬁ Accounting for Stock lsued
g.ﬁaiiri—?iig%igﬂ
iiiiifli:&iﬂ:ﬁlg;ﬂng
Eiiiinﬂgﬂll?ﬂln‘ﬁi‘i!‘lgiﬁ
Egiﬁiﬂtzp.u..fﬂll??a.-:lnii. the
nﬁ!.lﬂi!i.:ﬂ:!ﬁfliﬁ&;i:uil!!lxi!i_
Your Endbed Dasasmbar }1,
[ 1794 1
MNet income—as reponted . .oaoiiiaiiiens $12,497,000  $5,808,000 $1,786,000
Net Income—pro fOrma . ........ooeoeeie-e 31 AB9.000 335,244,000 $1,636,000
Eamings per share—basic as reported . § 066 $ 03 3 01D
Eamings per share—basic pro forma. ........ L1 D60 (IR F . | 0.2
Earnings per share—diluted as reporied ... ... 3 o4 § 0y 3 012
Eamings per share—diluted pro forma ... ... 5 0y 1 031 5 o1l




PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(10) Capital Stock

On September 30, 1995, the Company's Board of Directors authorized management to file a registration
statement with the Securities and Exchange Commissivn to permit the Company 1o sell shares of i common
stock 1o the public. On September 30, 1993, the Company's Board of Directons authorized an amendment 1o the
Centificate of Incorporation which was approved by the shareholders on the same date. The amendment effected
2 940 10 1 split of the Company's Common Stock and adjusted the suthorized shares 10 29,000,000 sheres of
common stock, $.0001 par value per share, and 1,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, $.0001 par value per share.
The 540 1o 1 split was effective Ociober 20, 1995. The rights, preferences and limitations of the Preferred Siock
may be designated by the Company's Board of Directors at any time.

On July 19, 1996, the Company completed an initial public offering of 6,057,050 shares of common stock
of which 4,940,050 were offered by the Company and 1,116,550 shares were offered by cemain selling
shareholders. The net proceeds to the Company (after deducting underwriting discounts and estimated offering
expenses) from the sale of the shares was approzimately $54.1 million.

(11) Stockbolders’ Rights Plan

On November 17, 1997, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a dividend of one preferred share
purchase right (a **Right™’) for each outstanding share of Common Stock. Subject to certain exceptions, each
Right, when exercisable, entitles the registered holder 10 purchase from the Company one one-thousandth of a
share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Siock, par value $0.0001 per share (the **Preferred Stock'"), of
the Company at a price of $20., subject 10 adjustment (the **Purchase Price’’).

The Rights geserally will only be exercisable (i) tea days following a public announcement that a4 persos or
group of affilisted or associsted persons (an '*Acquiring Person'") has acquired, or obtained the right to acquire,
15% or more of the cutstanding shares of the Company's Common Stock or (ii) 15 business days following
commencement of (or an announcement of an intention 1o make) a tender or exchange offer for 13% or more of
the outstanding shares of the Common Stock. The Rights will expire, if not previously exercised, exchanged or
redeemed, on December 1, 2007,

If any person or group generally acquires 15% or more of the Company's outstanding Common Stock, each
Right, except those held by such an Acquiring Person, would entitle each holder of & Right to acquire, upon
exercise st the then current exercise price of the Right, Common Stock haviag a value equal 10 two times the
exercise price of the Right.

Al anytime after a person or group generlly scquires more than |5% of the outstanding Common Stock
and prior 1o their acquisition of 50% or more of the outstanding Common Stock, each Right, except those held
by such an Acquiring Person, may be exchanged by the Board of Direcion for one sham of Common Stock.

If the Company is scquired in & merger or other business combination ransaction or 0% or more of the
Company's assels or earnings power is sold, each Right will entide the holder thereof (except for the Acquiring
Person) to receive, upon exercise af the then current exercise price of the Right, common mock of the acquiring
or surviving company having a value equal 1o two times the exercise price of the Right

Al any time prior 1o the time an Acquiring Person becomes such, the Board of Direciors may redeem the
Rights in whole, but not in part, st » price of $.01 per Right (the "' Redemption Price'").
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PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—{Continued)

(12) New Accounting Proscuncements

In June 1997, the FASB issued SFAS No. 130, “*Reporting Comprehensive lacome'’. SFAS No. 130
esiablishes standards for reporting and display of comprehensive income and its components in a financial
statement that s displayed with the same promisence as other financial statements. Comprehentive income as
defined includes all changes in equity (et cisets) during a period from nonowner sources. Examples of items to
be included in comprahensive income, which are excluded from net income, include foreign currency translation
adjustments. Management is currently evaluating the financial statement and disclosure impact of the adoption
usmsumnmmwwsrummmhmﬂmvnhmm
March 31, 1998

Ia June 1997, the FASB issued SFAS No. 131, *“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprises and Related
Information*. This statement esiablishes standands for the way companies report information sbout opersting
scgments in annual finsncial statements. It also establishes standards for related disclosures about products and
services, geographic aress, and major customers. The Company is in the process of evalusting the disclosure
impac: of adopting this new standard. The disclosures prescribed by SFAS No. 131 must be made for the year
ended December 31, 1998. -

{13) Subsequent Event

On February 13, 1998, the Company purchased of 16.6% of Ekonom S.A. de C.V., a Mexican multimedia
company existing under the laws of the United Mexican States, for $3,600,000 in cash and 51,800,000 in Pacific

Gateway's stock. The Company’s invstment in Ekonom will be accounted for the under the cost method in
1998,




ITEM 9. mummmmmmmmmnmcmmn AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

, PART I

ITEM 10. umr:mummclmﬂum

mwmmmwmmuwwmnmw
mhduhhqpﬁu‘m&mm".“mudfMHhM"ud"h.-ﬁun
Iﬂﬂwmmcﬂn"hmwwmwhm 1998 Ansual
Meeting of Stockholders. '

ITEM 1L EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

mmmﬂuunuwwmuuwmmm
Mﬂ'WﬂMﬂWDﬂﬂ!"th‘lhﬂywhﬁ 1998
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 1% mmmmmmmommmmm

mmwnwuhwwnﬂumuummmu
quhl"Mﬁpdhﬂwﬂ!ﬂdht@m"hhtﬂfuﬁyiﬂuﬂhmIHI
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 13. mmmmmmmmuﬂs

mmwnmuumwmuhmwmu
w*mmamn-:ﬂnw'hmw'-m!wrwh 1998
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

TART IV

ITEM 14. MWHAWMMMIHQHWHHII
(a)1, Financial Statements®

Wmm-ﬂmn.lmm 1996
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the TMEMMJI.IW.IMHIIM
WMdmmmu?mwwn. 1997, 1996 and 1993

WdehSM‘MhhTmmw:l. 1997,
1996 and 1993

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
* Included in Ttemn 8 of this 10-K
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(). Financial Statement Schedule
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10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4.1

10.42

10,43

10.4.4

10,45

10.46

10.4.7

10.5.1

Schedule 11 Valustion and Qualifying Accounts

. -
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as
amended May 20, 1997

Amended and Restuted Bylaws, as amended December 30,

1997
Specimen Certificate for Common Stock

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation. as
amended May 20, 1997

Rights Agreement dated as of November 17, 1997,

between the Company and Norwest Bank Minnesota, N.A.

as Rights Agent

Form of Indemnification Agreement for directons and
officers

1997 Loag-Term Inceative Plan
Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Proxy dated December 10, 1994 by Julie J, Jensen
Proxy dated December 10, 1994 by Jeffrey J. Jensen
Proxy dated December 10, 1994 by Jaset Jensen Kreiger
Proxy dated December 10, 1994 by James J. Jensen
Proxy dated December 10, 1994 by Jami J. Jensen
Proxy dated May 10, 1996 by Gail E. Granton

Proxy dated June 10, 1996 Ronald L. Jensen

Employment Agreement dated October |, 1993 between
Howard A. Neckowitz and Pacific Gateway Exchange,
Inc.

4

Matbod of Filing
Incorporated by reference to Quarterly

Repont on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 1997 (No. 000-21043)

Filed with this documesnt

Incorporated by reference w Reglstration
Siiement oo Form 5-1 (No. 33-80191)

Incorporated by reference 10 Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarer
ended June 30, 1997 (No. 000-21043)

Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K
filed November 21, 1997 (Mo, 000-
21043)

Filed with this document

Incorporated by reference 1o Quanerly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended Juoe 30, 1997 (Mo, 000-11043)

Incorporated by reference 1o Registration
Sustement on Form 5-1 (MNo. 33-80191)

Incorporated by reference 10 Registration
Statement oo Form 5-1 (Mo, 33-B01%1)

by reference w
Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-80191)

by reference o Registration
Statement on Form 5-1 (No. 33-80191)

Incorporated by reference w0 Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-80191)

Incorporsted by reference to Registration
Sustement on Form 5-1 (No. 33-80191)

Incorporated by reference to
Statement on Form 5-1 (No. 13-80191)

Incorporsted by reference o Regisration
Statement oa Form S-1 (No. 33-80191)

Incorporsted by reference o
Staternant on Form 5-1 (No. 33-80191)
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1052

1053

10.5.4

1056

10.6

10.7

10.8

2.1
pil
I1.1

Dumptn
Employment Agreement dated October 1, 1995 between
Gail E. Granton and Pacific Gateway Exchange, Inc.
Employment Agrecment dated as of October 1, 1995
hem-;nltnuldnm-ﬂ'ﬂcm
Exchange,Inc.

Employment Agreement dated October 1, 1995 between
Robert F, Craver and Pacific Gatewny Exchange, Inc.

Employment Agreement dated October 1, 1993 between
Fred A. Weismiller and Pacific Gateway Exchange, Inc.

Restricted Stock Award Agreement dated December
30,1997 between Howard A. Neckowitz and Pacific

Gateway Exchange, Inc.
Telephooe Service dated May 1, 1995 between Matrix
Telecom, Inc. and Pacific Gateway Exchange, Inc.

Agreement for Billing Services dated November 24, 1993
Between Matrix Telecom, Iac. and Pacific Gateway

Exchange, Inc.
Form of Stock Purchase Agreement with KDD

Subsidiaries
Consent of Independent Accountants
Financial Data Schedule

{(b) Reports on Form B-K

Stockholders Rights Plan filed on Form 8-K November 21, 1997.

Metbod of 7 ding
Incorporated by reference to Registration
Statement on Form 5-1 (No. 33-80191)

by reference 0
Swement oo Form 5-1 (No, 33-80191)

by reference to Registration
Statement on Form 5-1 (No. 13-8019.)

by -2ference 1o Anoual
on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1996 (No. 000-21043)

Filed with this document

Incorporated by reference to Registration
Swusement on Form S-1 (No. 33-80191)

Incorporated by refereace o
Suement on Form §-1 (No. 33-80191)

Incorporated by reference to Registration
Statement oa Form S-1 (No. 33-80191)

Flled with this document
Filed with this document
Filed with this document
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Valustion end Quallfying Accounts
L
Addktbves
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Allowance for doubtful accounts:
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EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.

e Jurtsdiction of
ﬁmmmmw ....................................... United Kingdom
Pacific Gateway Exchangs (Cyprus) Limited ......oovirieimniniarsnnnrnenssnnris Republic of Cyprus
Pacific Gatewsy Exchange New Zealand Limited. .. ....ooovvmnrermninrnenserenes New Zealand
Pacific Gatewsy Exchange (Bermuda) Limited . .. ..o oooovnnmrnassrnmrrnsrmrsrsins Islands of Bermuda




EXHIBIT 4

MANAGERIAL QUALIFICATIONS
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INTERNATIONAL EXCHANGE COMMUNICATIONS, INC. d/b/a IE COM

and
PACIFIC GATEWAY EXCHANGE, INC.

Key Members of Management

Mr. Howard A. Neckowltz has served as President and Director of International Exchange
Communications, Inc. ¢/b/a IE Com (*IE Com”) since its inception in June 1997. He has also served
as President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Pacific Galeway Exchange
(*PGE") since its inception in August 1991. Mr. Neckowitz previously served as a consultant to
major U.S. and overseas telecommunications companies with respect to valuation and due diligence
processes for the acquisition of ongoing foreign telecommunications operations and the start up of
competitive carrier operations for intemational, long distance, local and cellular operations in various
countries. Prior to his consulting experience, Mr. Neckowitz served from 1982 to 1986 as Director,
International Services, at GTE Sprint, where he founded and developed GTE Sprint's international
services operation. In this position, he was responsible for feasibility analyses supporting GTE
Sprint's entrance into the international switched service market. From 1977 to 1982, Mr. Neckowitz
worked at AT&T in its Overseas Department. Mr. Neckowitz serves as Chairman of the Board of
Matnx Telecom, Inc., and as a director of Cam-Net Telecommunications, Inc., a provider of
domestic telecommunication services in Canada, both of which are customers of PGE.

Ms. Gall E. Granton has served as Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer of [E Comssince
its inception in June 1997. Ms. Granton has also served as Executive Vice President, International
Business Development, Secretary and amember of the Board of Directors of PGE since its inception
in August 1991. From August 1991 to August 1996, she served as Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. From 1986 to August 1991, Ms. Granton served as a consultant to major U.S. and
overseas telecommunications companies, focusing on the valuation and due diligence process for
the acquisition of ongoing foreign telecommunication operations and the start-up of competitive
carrier operations for international, long distance, local and cellular operations in various countries.
From 1982 to 1986, Ms. Granton worked in the Intemational Department of GTE Sprint, as a
Manager, Intemational Business Development, reporting to Mr. Neckowitz.

Ms. Sandra D, Grey has served as Chief Financial Officer of PGE since 1996. From 1989
to 1996, Ms. Grey worked for Telecom New Zealand, the primary provider of telecommunications
services in New Zealand, where she was Chief Financial Officer of the Intemational subsidiary. Ms.
Grey has more than seven years experience in intemnational telecommunications.

Mr. Ronald D. Anderson has served as Senior Vice President, Operations and Engineening
of PGE since December 1992, From 1986 to 1992, Mr. Anderson served in a similar position with
TRT Intemational, Inc., an intemational telecommunications carrier that has since been acquired by
WorldCom. Mr. Anderson has more than 15 years of experience in domestic and intemational
telecommunications engincering and operations, with significant experience in international
signaling and transmission for cable and satellite, PTT technical interface, and bilateral technical

Mr. Robert F. Craver has served as Senior Vice President, International Relations of PGE
since February 1994. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Craver worked at GTE Hawaiian Telephone




Co., Inc. from 1987 to 1994. While at GTE Hawaiian Telephone, Mr. Craver directed that
company's intemational program as Director of International Services. Mr. Craver has also held
international positions at Sprint and AT&T, for a total of more than 20 years of experience in the
international telecommunications industry. Mr. Craver has extensive experience in international
negotiations with foreign partners and has served as an officer of the Pacific Telecommunications
Council.

Mr. Fred A. Weismiller joined the Company in November 1994 as Executive Vice
President, International Marketing. Mr. Weismiller's responsibilities include developing the value-
added long distance services which can be sold to U.S. carriers and to carriers in developing overseas
markets. From 1991 to 1994, Mr. Weismiller served as Managing Director and Executive Director,
Sales and Marketing at Telecom New Zealand. Mr. Weismiller has 25 years of experience in
international and domstic telecommunications management, including 20 years with AT&T, where
his final assignment was in Hong Kong as the Managing Director of the AT&T Regional Technical
Center from 1989 to 1990.

Mr. William R. Haner has served as Vice President, International Sales, of PGE since
January 1995. From 1993 to 1994, Mr. Haner served in & similar position with IDB
Communications Group, Inc., an intemational telecommunications company which has since been
acquired by WorldCom. From 1985 to 1993, Mr. Haner was a Director of Sales for TRT
Intemational, Inc., where he was responsible for international data services and implementing
cnhanced facsimile services. Mr. Haner has more than 14 years of sales experience with long
distance carriers and commercial customers.

Ms. Joyce R. Hewins joined PGE in December 1993 as Vice President, Carrier Marketing,
to develop a U.S. carrier marketing program for the Company. Prior to joining the Company,
Ms. Hewins was Director, Carrier Services, at West Coast Communications, where she was
responsible for carrier marketing from 1992 to 1993. Ms. Hewins was also Director, Carmier
Services at Com System, Inc., a domestic long distance telecommunications company, where she
was responsible for developing the carrier marketing program from 1984 to 1992. Ms. Hewins has
maore than 11 years of experience in the telecommunications industry.
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PROPOSED TARIFF




International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/ba IE Com Florida Tant¥ No. |
Original Sheet No. |

TITLE SHEET

This tariff applies to the resold long distance interexchange telecommunications services
fumnished by Intemational Exchange Communications, In¢, d/b/a IE Com (“Carrier”) between one
or more points in the State of Florida. This tariff is on file with the Florida Public Service
Commission, and copies may be inspected, during normal business hours, at Carrier's principal place
of business, 533 Airport Boulevard, Suite 505, Burlingame, CA 94010.

Issued: October 21,1998 Effective: _____

By: Gail E. Granton, Vice President
International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a |E Comm
533 Alrport Boulevard, Sulte 505

Burlingame, CA 94010




International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Com Florida P S C Tanfl No. |
Original Sheet No. 2

CHECK SHEET

The sheets of this tariff are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the respective
sheet(s). Original and revised sheets as named below comprise all changes from the onginal tanfT
and are currently in effect as of the date on the bottom of this page.

SHEET REVISION SHEET REVISION
25 Original
Original 26 Original
Original 27 Original
Original 28 Original
Original 29 Original
Original 30 Original
Original 3 Original
Original 32 Oniginal
Original 33 Original

Pl s s S e e e S a—
S D08~ L B — e DO e b=
i

2988
EEee

Issued: October 21,1998 Effective:

By: Gall E. Granton, Vice President
International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Comm
533 Airport Boulevard, Suite 505
Burlingame, CA 54010




International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/Wa IE Com

Flonda P S C Tanfl No. |
Onginal Sheet No. 3

Section | - Technical Terms and Abbreviations . ..................0vinnn
Section2 - Rulesand Regulations ... ..................0....
Section 3 - Descriptionof Services ..............ccovuiun..

Section4-Rates .............

..... SRR P ||

21
....................... 2

Issued: October 21,1998
By: Gall E. Granton, Vice President

Effective;

International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Comm

533 Alrport Boulevard, Suite 505
Burlingame, CA 94010




International Exchange Communications, Inc. d'b/a IE Com Flonda P S C Tanfl No. |
Original Sheet No. 4
INDEX
Advance Payments ............. - o R R Bt e e g W T B g b I8
T e | B s 19
BT IR 5 b e i 3 e T A v e e L R A T 21
Calculnthon OF DERMIROR .00 o o i yairsnns s dos s o daslin v ol S iwdgia b auie shlainm e i 23
(s [T B T e O OOt P PR e o S S 21
DDEPORIIE: (o o1 a g 30 P 0 0 0 v i 18
Disconnectionof Service by Camrier .. .......cooiiiiiiiiiieniiiinniiiiaiienianans 18
Individion) Conlmmil . o oo rils oo s i il S R b e e W 20
Interraption Of Servior . . . . . covciucraiiiircsiisnsirsnsssassnbsssasssinsontingans 16
Liability of Covier s e« v s ccvvsririnssrsnssrenssannse I 12-16
D AIRTOIRENIN o .c5ioc  STi  m 5 8 T0 T TR e 11
M RS- . i ot s s N T R T R R e R 3
Mo U COMMBIEES ..o cosspooinstostarosnpransonmermpssssibeossessssinsnss 19
Minimum Call Completion RBIE .. .....ovvviiiornnun conennsssrressarssstsersaras 22
PayRnE O RIS .05 o a i ireia an onalas aiaiiossisiam i onw o5 0 08 WAl L GTHCRIHL 8 1 60 T T 32
Eabe Payment CHRIRES <. oo vvvaviviivmivahiina siin e s o wa d o s sieania s vdes 2
ot CBock CRIIIE . . i o overiasiinmeiiainsiossnsnassiasiiasaidsenees 32
Restorationof Service .........oivveviainins o im e B A RS BT BB AT B AT 32
SerVIOE OTTRERIED = 5.« o o e wuh oo dow Tt arawn e D O U 23
1+ SaummB DERl™ i sy e e e R s 29, 32
International Program - Commercial (14)™ . .......covviiiiiiiiiniienin, 28, 31
International Program - Commercial (Dedicated)™ . ... ................ .00 27,31
International Progri m - Residential/Retail™ . ... ... ... ................... 26, 31
Prepaid Calling Card - “Travel EXpress™ ... .........civiveiaarinanniinanns 23,31
Postpaid Calling Card - “Travel Express” .. ... ..ot 25, 31
SNAP BRVEOE™ . i iissansiaianssenssnsvimessosssisesseesseise 24, 31
TOll Froe BervioR ... e ncmasismas s bdss s ardsas s es s s cnsiis s e L 32
Sp:thJRnuFutThHmdiupped ............................................. 33
Tclmmmmuﬁmﬂchy&mne ........................................ il
UndmhngnftheCltﬂ:r ..................................................... 10
Issued: October 21,1998 Effective:
By: Cail E. Granton, Vice President
International Exchange Communici tons, Inc. d/b/a IE Comm
533 Airport Boulevard, Suite 505
Burlingame, CA 94010
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International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Com Flonda PS C TanfT No. |
Original Sheet No. §
INDEX
When Billing Charges Beginand End for Phone Calls .. ................ooiiiiiinnn.. 21
Issued: October 21,1998 Effective:
By: Gall E. Granton, Vice President
International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a |E Comm
533 Airport Boulevard, Suite 505
Burlingame, CA 94010




International Exchange Communications. Inc. d/ba IE Com Florida P S C Tanff No. |
Onginal Sheet No. 6

SYMBOLS

The following are the only symbols used for the purposes indicated below:

D-  Delete or Discontinue

l- Change Resulting In An Increase to A Customer’s Bill

M-  Moved From Another Tariff Location

N-  New

R-  Change Resulting In A Reduction to A Customer’s Bill

T-  Change In Text or Regulation But No Change In Rate or Charge

lssued: October 21,1998 Effective.

By: Gail E. Granton, Vice President
International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/t/a IE Comm
533 Airpon Boulevard, Suite 505
Burlingame, CA 94010
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Intemational Exchange Communications, Inc. d'b/a IE Com Florida P S C Tanff No. |

Original Sheet No. 7

TARIFF FORMAT

Sheet Numbering - Sheet numbers appear in the upper right comer of the page. Sheets are
numbered sequentially. However, new sheets are occasionally added to the tariff. When a

new sheet is added between sheets already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new
sheet added between sheets 14 and 15 would be 14.1.

Sheet Revision Numbers - Revision numbers also appear in the upper right comer of each
page. These numbers are used to determine the most current sheet version on file with the

Commission. For example, the 4th Revised Sheet 14 cancels the 3rd Revised Sheet 14,
Because of various suspension periods, deferrals, etc. the Commission follows in their tanfY
approval process, the most current sheet number on file with the Commission is not always
the tariff page in effect.

Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each level of

coding is subservient to its next higher level:

Lt
LLA.

2.1.LA.L
2.1.1A.1(a).
2.1.LA.L(@).I.
2.1.LA.L(2).L().
2.1.1A.L(a).L{i).(1).

Check Sheets - When a tariff filing is mace with the Commiission, an updated check sheet
accompanies the tariff filing. The cho~k sheet lists the sheets contained in the tariff, with a
cross reference to the current revision number. When new pages are added, the check sheet
is changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are designated by an
asterisk (*). There will be no other symbols used on the check sheet if these are the only
changes made to it (i.c., the format, etc. remains the same, just revised revision levels on
some pages). The tarifT user should refer to the latest check sheet to find out if a particular
sheet is the most current on file with the Commission.

Issued: October 21,1998 Effective:

By:

Gail E. Granton, Vice President

International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Comm
533 Airport Boulevard, Suite 505

Burlingame, CA 94010
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International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Com Florida P 'S C TanfT No. |

Original Sheet No. §

SECTION 1. TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Acgess Line - An armangement from a local exchange telephone company or other common
carrier, using either dedicated or switched access, which connects a Subscriber’s location to
Carrier's location or switching center.

Authorization Code - A numerical code, one or more of which may be assigned 1o a
Subscriber, to enable Carrier to identify the origin of service User so it may rate and bill the
call. All authorization codes shall be the sole property of Carrier and no Subscriber shall
have any property or other right or interest in the use of any particular authorization code.
Automatic numbering identification (ANI) may be used as or in connection with the
suthorization code.

Automatic Numbering Identification (ANI) - A type of signaling provided by a local
exchange telephone company which automatically identifies the local exchange line from
which a call originates.

Calling Card - A postpaid or prepaid calling card issued by Carrier which allows Subscribers
and/or Users to make telephone calls and charge the calls to a postpaid or prepaid account.
Calls charged to a Carmier-issued postpaid Calling Card will appear on the Subscriber's
regular monthly bill. Calls charged to a Carrier-issued prepaid Calling Card will be charged
against the debit account.

Carrier or Company - Refers to International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a I[E Com
Commission - Refers to the Florida Public Service Commission.

Common Cagrier - A company or entity providing telecommunications services to the public.
Complaint - Any oral or written report from a Subscriber or user of telephone service relating
to a physical defect, difficulty or dissatisfaction with the operation of telephone facilities,
ermrors in billing or the quality of service rendered.

Day - From 8:00 AM up to but not including 5:00 PM local time Sunday through Friday.

Evening - From 5:00 PM up to but not including 11:00 local time Sunday through Friday.

lssued: October 21,1998 Effeciive:

By:

Gail E. Granton, Vice President

International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Comm
533 Airpont Boulevard, Suite 505

Burlingame, CA 94010
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International Exchange Communications, Inc. d'b/a |[E Com Florida P S C Tanfl No. |

Original Sheet No. 9

SECTION 1. TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS (Contd)

Holiday - New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving
Day and Christmas Day.

Local Access and Transport Area (LATA) - The term "Local Access Transport Area” denotes
a geographical area established by the U.S. District Count for the District of Columbia in
Civil Action No. 82-0192, within which a local exchange company provides communications
services.

Measured Charge - A charge assessed on a per minute basis in calculating a portion of the
charges due for a completed interexchange call.

NightWeekend - From 11:00 PM up to but not including 8:00 AM Sunday through Friday,
and B:00 Am Saturday up to but not including 5:00 PM Sunday.

Subscriber/Cyustomer - The person, firm, corporation or legal entity which enters into
arrangements for Carrier's telecommunications services and is respensible for payment of
Carrier’s services.

Telecommunications - The transmission of voice communications or, subject to the
transmission capabilities of the service, the transmission of data, facsimile, signaling,
metering, or other similar communications.

User - The person(s) utilizing Carrier's services.

Working Day - Any day on which Carrier is open for business and U.S. Mail is delivered.

Issued: October 21,1998 Effective:

By:

Gail E. Granton, Vice President

International Exchange Communications, Inc. dv/a IE Comm
533 Alrpont Boulevard, Suite 505

Burlingame, CA 94010




International Exchange Communications, Inc. d¢Wa IE Com Florida P S C TanfT No. |

Original Sheet No. 10

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS
21 Underaking of the Carrier

2.1

IE Com's services and facilities are furnished for communications originating at
specified points within the state of Florida under terms of this tanff.

IE Com installs operates, and maintains the communications services provided herein
in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth under this tanfT. It may act as
the customer's agen! for ordering access connection Scilities provided by other
carriers or entities when authorized by the customer, to allow connection of a
customer’s location to the Company's network. The customer shall be responsible for
all charges due for such service arrangement.

IE Com's serices and facilities are provided on a monthly basis unless ordered on
a longer term basis, and arc available twenty-four hours per day, seven days per
week.

The selling of intrastate interexchange ("IXC") telecommunications service o
uncertificated IXC resellers is prohibited.

Issued: October 21,1998 Effective:

By:

Gail E, Granton, Vice Presidemn

International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Comm
533 Alrpont Boulevard, Suite 503

Burlingame, CA 94010




International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Com Florida P S C Tanfl No. |

Original Sheet No. 12

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)
Ligbility of Carri

23

23.1

232

233

234

Except as otherwise stated in this section, the liability of Cammier for damages ansing
out of either: (1) the furnishing of its services, including but not limited to mistakes,
om:ssions, interruptions, delays, or errors, or other defects, representations, or use of
these services, or (2) the failure to fumish its service, whether caused by acts or
omission, shall be limited to the extension of allowances to the Customer for
interruptions in service as set forth in Section 2.5.

Except foc the extension of allowances to the Customer for interruptions in service
as set forth in Section 2.5, Carrier shall not be liable to a Customer or third panty for
any direct, indirect, special, incidental, reliance, consequential, exemplary or punitive
damages, including, but not limited to, loss of revenue or profits, for any reason
whatsoever, including, but not limited to, any act or omission, failure to perform,
delay, interruption, failure to provide any service or any failure in or breakdown of
facilities associated with the service.

The liability of Carrier for errors in billing thal result in overpayment by the
Customer shall be limited to a credit equal to the dollar amount erroncously billed
or, in the event that payment has been made and service has been discontinued. 1o a
refund of the amount erroneously billed.

Carrier shall not be liable for any claims for loss or damages involving:
A. Any act or omission of: (1) the Customer, (2) any other entity fumishing

service, equipment or facilities for use in conjunction with services or
ﬁmhhu provided by Carrier; or (3) common carriers or warchousemen,

Issued: Cctober 21,1998 Effective:

By:

Gail E. Granton, Vice President

International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a |E Comm
533 Airport Boulevard, Suite 505

Burlingame, CA 94010




International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Com

Flonida P S C Tan(T No. |
Onginal Sheet No. 13

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)
Liability of Carrier (Cont'd)

23

234

(Cont'd)

Any delay or failure of performance or equipment due to causes beyond
Carrier's control, including but not limited to, acts of God, fires, floods,
carthquakes, hurricanes, or other catastrophes; national emergencies,
insurrections, riots, wars or other civil commotions; strikes, lockouts, work
stoppages or other labor difficulties; criminal actions taken against Carmier;
unavailability, failure or malfunction of equipment or facilities provided by
the Customer or third parties; and any law, order, regulation or other action
of any governing authority or agency thereof,

Any unlawful or unauthorized use of Carrier's facilities and services;

Libel, slander, invasion of privacy or infringement of patents, trade secrets,
or copyrights arising from or in connection with the transmission of
communications by means of Carrier-provided facilities or services; or by
means of the combination of Carrier-provided facilities or services with
Cusiomer-provided facilities or services;

Breach in the privacy or security of communications transmitted over
Carrier's facilities;

Changes in any of the facilities, operations or procedures of Carrier that
render any equipment, facilities or services provided by the Customer
obsolete, or require modification or alteration of such equipment, facilities
or services, or otherwise affect their use or performance, except where
reasonable notice is required by Carrier and is not provided to the Customer,
in which event Carrier's liability is limited as set forth in subsection 2.3.1 of
this Section 2.3,
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Contd)
23 Liability of Carrier (Cont'd)
234 (Comt'd)
G. Injury to property or injury or death to persons, including claims for

paymeats made under Workers' Compensation law or under any plan for
employee disability or death benefits, arising out of, or caused by, any act or
omission of the Customer, or the construction, installation, maintenance,
presence, use or removal of the Customer’s facilities or equipment connected,
or to be connected to Carrier's facilities;

H. Any intentional, wrongful act of a Carmrier employee when such act is not
within the scope of the employee's responsibilities for Carnier and/or is not
authorized by Carrier,

. Any representations made by Carrier employees that do not compont, or that
are inconsistent, with the provisions of this TarifT;

J. Any act or omission in connection with the provisionof 911, E911, or similar
servi~es involving emergencies;

Any noncompletion of calls due to network busy conditions;

L Any calls not actually attempted to be completed during any period that
service is unavailable.

Issued: October 21,1998 Effective:
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)
Liability of Carrier (Cont'd)

2.3.5 Carrier shall be indemnified, defended and held harmless by the Customer or end

2.3

236

user from and against any and all claims, loss, demands, suits, expense, or other
action or any liability whatsoever, including attomey fees, whether suffered, made,
instituted, or asserted by the Customer or by any other party, for any personal injury
to or death of any person or persons, and for any loss, damage or destruction of any
property, including environmental contamination, whether owned by the Customer
or by any other party, caused or claimed to have been caused directly or indirectly
by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, presence, condition,
location, use or removal of any Carrier or Customer equipment or facilities or service

provided by Carrier.

Carrier does not guarantee nor make any warranty with respect to installations
provided by it for use in an explosive atmospheic. Except as otherwise provided for
by applicable law or regulations or determined by a court of competent jurisdiction
ond unless due to Carrier's negligence, Carrier shall be indemnified. defended and
held harmless by the Customer from and against any and all claims, loss, demands,
suits, or other action, or any liability whatsoever, including attomey fees, whether
suffered, m. de, instituted or asserted by the Customer or by any other party, for any
personal injury 1o or death of any person or persons, and for any loss, damage or
destruction of any property, including environmental contamination, whether owned
by the Customer or by any other party, caused or claimed to have been caused
directly or indirectly by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance,
presence, condition, location, use or removal of any equipment or facilities or the
service.
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Contd)
Liability of Carier (Cont'd)

23

24

2.3.7

Carrier assumes no responsibility for the availability or performance of any cable or
satellite systems or related facilities under the control of other entities, or for other
facilities provided by other entitics used for service to the Customer, cven if Camier
has acted as the Customer’s agent in arranging for such facilities or services. Such
facilities are provided subject to such degree of protection or nonpreemptibility as
may be provided by the other entities.

Any claim of whatever nature against Carrier shall be deemed conclusively to have
been waived unless presented in writing to Carrier within 180 days after the date of
the occurrence that gave rise to the claim.

Interruption of Service

24.1

Credit allowance for the interruption of service which is not due to The Company's
testing or adjusting, negligence or the customer, or to the failure of channels or
equipment provic.ad by the customer, are subject to the general liability provisions
set forth in 2.3.1 herein. It shall be the customer's obligation to notify the Company
immediately of any service interruption for which a credit allowance is desired.
Before giving such notice, the customer shall ascertain that the trouble is not being
caused by any action or omission by the customer within his control. if any,
furnished by the customer and connected to the Company’s facilities. No refund or
credit will be made for the time that the Company stands ready to repair the service
and the subscriber does not provide access to the Company for such restoration work.

No credit shall be allowed for an interruption of a continuous duration of less than
twenty-four hours afier the subscriber notifies the Company.
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)
24 |Interruption of Service (Cont'd)

243 The customer shall be credited for an interruption of more than twenty-four hours as
follows:

Credit Formula:
Credit=ABxC
"A" - outage time in hours

"B" - total hours in a month (month = 720)
"C" - 1otal monthly charge for affected facility

Issued: October 21,1998 Effective:
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)
2.5 Disconnection of Service by Carrier

Carrier, upon 5 working days written notice to the Customer, may discontinue service or

cancel an application for service without incurring any liability for any of the following
reasons:

2.5.1 Non-payment of any sum due to Carrier for regulated service for more than thinty
days beyond the date of rendition of the bill for such service.

2.5.2 A violation of any regulation governing the service under this tanfT.

2.5.3 A violation of any law, rule, or regulation of any government authority having
jurisdiction over such service.

2.54 The Company has given the Customer notice and has allowed a ieasonable time 1o
comply with any rule, or remedy, and deficiency as stated in Rule 25-4.113,
F.A.C., Refusal or Discontinuance of Service by Company

26  Deposits
The Company does not require a deposit from the Customer.

2.7  Advance Payments
For Customers whom the Company feels an advance payment is necessary, the Company
reserves the right to collect an amount not to exceed one (1) month's estimated charges as

an advance payment for service. This will be applicd against the next month's charges and
if necessary a new advance payment will be collected for the next month.
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

2,10 Minimum Use Contracts(Cont"d)

2.11

2.10.3 The initial contract period for service under this section is one month. Subsequent
contract periods shall be for additional one-month periods unless otherwise
specified.

;o

Al the option of the Company, service may be offered on a contract basis to meet
specialized requirements of the Customer not contemplated in this tariff as approved by
the Florida Public Service Commission. The terms of cach contract shall be mutually
agreed upon between the Customer and Company and may include discounts ofT of rates
contained herein, waiver of recurring or nonrecurring charges, charges for specially
designed and constructed services not contained in the Company's general service
offerings, or other customized features. The terms of the contract may be based partially
or completely on the term and volume commitment, type of originating or terminating
access, mixture of services or other distinguishing features. Service shall be available 10
all similarly situated Customers for a fixed period of time following the initial offering
for the first contract Customer as specific in each individual contract.
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

3l

. %

33

34

The regulations set forth in this section explain how to apply the rate tables associated
with the various service offerings described in Section 4, following.

When Billing Charges Begin and End for Phone Calls

The Customer’s long distance usage charge is based on the actual usage of the Company ‘s
network. Usage begins when the called party picks up the receiver, (i.e. when 2-way
communications, often referred 10 as “conversation time™ is possible.). When the called
party picks up is determined by hardware answer supervision in which the local telephone
company sends a signal to the switch or the software utilizing audio tone detection. When
software answer supervision is employed, up to 60 seconds of ringing is allowed before it
is billed as usage of the network. A call is terminated when the calling or called panty hangs
up.

Billing 1

The minimum call duration for billing purposes is thirty seconds [0, a connected call and
calls beyond thinty seconds are billed in six second increments,

Uncompleted Calls

The Company does not bill customers for calls which are not completed (busy numbers,
no answer, elc.).

Credit and Refunds

If a credit is requested on a call due 1o trouble on the line (such as bad connection,
disconnection, wrong number dialed, eic.), and the credil is requested immediately
through the operator of the underlying carrier, it is issued promptly. All other credit
requests are handled through the Company's business office.
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont'd)
3.5 Calculation of Distance

Usage charges for all mileage sensitive products are based on the airline distance between
rate centers associated with the originating and terminating points of the call.

The airline mileage between rate centers is determined by applying the formula below to the
vertical and horizontal coordinates associated with the rate centers involved. The Company

uses the rate centers that are produced by Bell Communications Research in the NPA-NXX
V & H Coordinates Tape and Bell's NECA Tariff No. 4.

FORMULA:
The square

rool of: - + (HL - H2)Y

3.6 Minimum Call Completion Ralc

A customer can expect a call completion rate (number of calls completed / number of
calls attempted) »f not less than 90% during peak use periods.
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont'd)
3.7 Service Offerings

Prepaid Calling Card - “Travel Express”, (non-operator assisted, direct-dial) is
offered 1o Customers who purchase a prepaid calling card from Carrier. This
product is ofTered to Customers through agents who have contracted with Carrier
to market this service to said customers. Cards will be issued in denominations of
$10, $20, $30, $50 and $100.

Calls are subject o a one (1) minute minimum billing duration, and sixty (60)
second billing increments. Unless where otherwise specified herein, when the
application of the rates set forth in this Section results in a fractional charge for an
individual call, the total charge for that particular call will be rounded up to the
next higher cent. Calls are rated based on call duration, as measured from answer
supervision to disconnect. No charge will generally apply to uncompleted calls,
which include “ring busy” and “ring no answer” calls. All rates will be per minute
of usage, twenty-four (24) hours per day, and seven (7) days per week, 365 days
per year. The charge is deducted from the remeinung balance on the card after
disconnect. The Customer is notified by a beep when one (1) minute of usage
remains on the card, if the card is in use.

For intrastate interLATA and intral ATA calls, Customers access the Prepaid
Calling Card service by:

1. Dialing | + Toll Free Number (800/888) - as indicated on reverse of card.

. At voice prompt, entering the Card Number,

3. At voice prompt, entering desired destination number by dialing | + (Area
Code ([NPA]) + (Exchange [NXX]) + (Station [XXXX]).

4. Calls are routed over Carrier’s transmission and switching facilities to any
valid domestic location served by Carrier.

§. Customer is notified of the dollar value and the number of domestic
minutes of usage remaining on the card.

lssued: October 21,1998 Effective: __ _______
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SECTION 3.

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont'd)

3.7 Service Offerings(Cont’d)

372

SNAF Service™

SNAP Service™ (non-operator assisted, direct-dial) is offered to customers,
including but not limited to, residential and business Customers.

Calls are subject to a one (1) minute minimum billing duration, and sixty (60)
second billing increments. Calls are rated based on call duration, as measured
from answer supervision to disconnect. No charge will generally apply 10
uncompleted calls, which include “ring busy™ and “ring no answer” calls, and
such uncompleted calls will not knowingly be charged to the Customer and, if
charged in error, will be refundable to the Customer. Unless where otherwise
specified herein, when the application of the rates set forth in this Section resulis
in a fractional charge for an individual call, the total charge for that particular call
will be rounded up to the next higher cent.

All calls and charges covered by this product description will be rendered to the
customer by the Local Exchange Company (LEC) on behalfl of Carrier by its
billing agent.
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont'd)
3.7 Service Offerings(Cont'd) |
373 Postpaid Calling Card - “Travel Express”

Carrier offers Postpaid Calling Card - “Travel Express,” (non-operator assisted,
direct-dial) to customers who select Carrier as their long distance carrier and
request a calling card on the letter of Authorization (LOA) submitted 1o Carrier
for activation. This product is offered to Customers through agents who have
contracted with Carrier to market this service to said Customers.

Calls are subject to a one (1) minute minimum billing duration, and sixty (60)
second billing increments. Calls are rated based on call duration, as measured
from answer supervision to disconnect. No charge will generally apply to
uncompleted calls, which include “ring busy” and “ring no answer” calls.
Customers access Postpaid Calling Card by:

1. Dialing 1+ toll free number (B0O0/888) - as indicated on reverse of card,

2 Al voice prompt, entering card number.

3. At voice prompt, entering desired destination number by dialing It (Arca
Code ([NPA]) + (Exchange [NXX]) + (Station [XXXX]).

4. Calls are routed over Carrier's transmission and switching facilities to any
valid domestic location served by Carries,

The charges for usage on this card will be billed on the customer’s Local
Exchange Company. (LEC) bill using the customer's billing telephone number.

All rates will be per minute of usage, twenty-four (24) hours per day, and seven
days per week, 365 days per year.
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SECTION 3. DESCRIFTION OF SERVICES (Coni'd)

37

gl
374 Intrnational Program - Residential/Retail™

Intemational Program (IP) - Residential/Retail™ (non-operator assisted, direct-
dial) is offered to Customers who have a residential line(s) at their premise and
are presubscribed to Carrier. The Customer must select the P -
Residential/Retail™ product on the Carrier Letter of Agency (LOA).

Calls are subject to a one (1) minute minimum billing duration, and sixty (60)
second billing increments. Calls are rated based on call duration, as measured
from answer supervision to disconnect. No charge will generally apply to
uncompleted calls, which include “ring busy™ and “ring no answer” calls, and
such uncompleted calls will not knowingly be charged to the Customer and, if
charged in error, will be refundable 1o the Customer. Unless where otherwise
specified herein, when the application of the rates set forth in this Section results
in a fractional charge for an individual call, the total charge for that particular call
will be rounded up to the next higher cent.

For intrastate intesrLATA and intraLATA calls, Customers access [P -
Residential/Ketail™ by dialing 1 + (Area Code [where required]) + (Exchange
[NXX]) + (Station [XXXX]). Calls are routed over Carrier’s transmission and
switching facilities to any valid domestic location served by Carrier

All calls and charges covered by this product description will be rendered 1o the
customer by the Local Exchange Company (LEC) on behalf of Carrier by its
billing agent.
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (€ ont’d)

3.7

Service Offerings(Cont'd)
3.7.5 |ntemational Program - Commercial (Dedicated)™

International Program (IP) - Comme: cial (Dedicated)™, (non-operator assisted,
direct-dial) is offered to Customers w ho have provisioned a dedicated access,
private l.ne between their premise and a Carrier point of presence (POP). The
Customer must select the [P - Commereial (Dedicated ™ product on the Carrier
letter of agency (LOA).

Calls are subject to a thirty (30) second minimum billing duration, and six (6)
second billing increments. Calls are rated based on call duration, as measured
from answer supervision lo disconnect. No charge will generally apply to
uncompleted calls, which include “ring busy” and “ring no answer” calls, and
such uncompleted calls will not knowingly be charged to the Customer and, if
charged in error, will be refundable to the Customer.

For intrastate interLATA and intraL AT\ calls, Customers access IP -
Commercial (Dedicated)™ by their switch (PBX) outpulsing (dialing) the (Area
Code [where required]) + (Exchange [NXX]) + (Station [XXXX]). Calls are
routed over arrier’s transmission and switching facilities to any valid domestic
location served by Camier.

All calls and charges covered herein will be rendered to the Customer by Carmier
directly. All rates are F.O.B. at the nearest Carrier point of presence to the
Customer. From time to time, Carrier will publish a list of its points of presence
in the United States.

This dedicated access service will be contructed with Carrier and subject to a six
month term contract. Additionally, the customer will be required to invoice a
minimum of $3,000 per month or 50,000 billable minutes of traffic to all
destinations. This provision will be waived for the first two months of the term

paoce
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SECTION 3. RESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont'd)

37

Service Offerings(Cont'd)
376 |nicmational Program - Commercial (1+)™

International Program (IP) - Commercial (1+)™ (non-operator assisted, direct-
dial) is offered to customers who have a business line(s) at their premise and arc
presubscribed to Carrier. The customer must select the [P - Commercial (1+)=
product on the Carrier letter of agency (LOA).

Calls are subject to a thirty (30) seccond minimum billing duration, and six (6)
second billing increments. Calls arc rated based on call duration, as measured
from answer supervision to disconnect. No charge will generally apply to
uncompleted calls, which include “ring busy™ and “ring no answer™ calls, and
such uncompleted calls will not knowingly be charged to the Customer and, if
charged in error, will be refundable to the Customer.

For intrastate interLATA and intraL ATA calls, Customers access [P -
Commercial (1+)™ by dialing 1 + (Area Code [where required]) + (Exchange
[NXX]) + (Station [XXXX]). Calls are routed over Carrier's transmission and
switching facilities to any valid domestic location served by Carrier.

At the customer’s option, all calis and charges covered by this product descnption
can be rendered 1o the customer by :

(i) the Local Exchange Company (LEC) on behall of Carrier by its billing
agent; or
(i)  Carrier directly.
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SECTION 3.

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont'd)

37 Service Offerings(Cont'd)

317

1+ Square Deal™

1+ Square Deal™ (non-operator assisted, direct-dial) is offered to customers who
have a residential line(s) at their premise and are presubscribed to Carrier. The
Customer must sclect the 1+ Square Deal™ product on the Carrier's letter of
agency (LOA) or select Carrier as their long distance carmier with their Local
Exchange Company (LEC).

Calls are subject to a one (1) minimum billing duration, aud sixty (60) second
billing increments. Calls are rated based on call duration, as measured from
answer supervision to disconnect. No charge will generally apply to
uncompleted calls, which include “ring busy™ and “ring no answer™ calls, and
such uncompleted calls will not knowingly be cha=;2d to the Customer and, if
charged in error, will be refundable to the Customer.

Customers access | +Square Deal by dialing 1+ (Area Code [where required])+
(Exchange [NXX])+ (Station [XXXX]). Calls are routed over Carricr's
transmission and switching facilities to any valid domestic location served by
Carrier.

All calls and charges covered by this product will be rendered to the customer by
the Local Exchange Company (LEC) on behalf of Carnier by its billing agent.

Carrier reserves the right to apply all credit policies and procedures in effect at the
time of the customer's order for service prior to processing of said order. Carier

additionally reserves the right to discontinue providing service to a customer if in

Carrier's sole discretion it believes that the service is being fraudulently to

improperly used.
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SECTION 3. RESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont'd)
3.7 Service Offerings(Cont’d)
3.7.8 Toll Free Service

Toll Free Service is an inbound-only service that allows callers located in the
United States to place toll-free calls by dialing a telephone number in the 800,888
or other toli free area code. Calls may be terminated cither to the Customer's
local exchange telephone service, or to a dedicated access line. Call charges are
billed to the Customer rather than to the originating caller.

Issued: Octobe, 21,1998 Effective:

By: Gail E. Granton, Vice President
International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Comm
533 Airpont Boulevard, Suite 505

Burlingame, CA 94010




international Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Com Florida P S C Tarill No. |

Original Sheet No. 31

SECTION 4. RAIES

4.1 Prepaid Calling Card - “Travel Express”
Per Minute Charge: $0.30
42  SNAP Service™
Per Minute Chage: $0.10
43 Postpaid Calling Card - “Travel Express”
Per Minute Charge: $0.12
Per Call Surcharge:* $0.75
. Surcharge applies in addition to the per minute usage rate.
44 ntemational Program - Residential/Retail™
Per Minute Charge: $0.12
45  Intemational “rogram - Commercial (Dedicated )™
Per Minute Charge: $0.08
4.6 - jnl (1+)=
Per Minute Charge: £0.11
47 1+ Squarc Deal™
4.7.1 Measured Ratcs
All rates will be per minute of usage, twenty-four (24) hours per day, and seven
(7 ) days per week, 365 days per year.
Peak hours are Monday through Friday, 7 a.m. to 7 p.m.
Issued: October 21,1998 Effective:
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SECTION 4. RATES(Cont'd)

4.7

4.8

49

4.10

1+ Square Deal™(Cont’d)
Off-
Peak Peak
Per Minute Charge $0.22 $0.10

Unless where otherwise specified herein. when the application of the rates set forth in this
Section results in a fractional charge for an individual call, the total charge for that
particular call will be rounded up to the next higher cent.

Toll Eree Service
Per Minute Charge:  $0.12

Payment of Calls

49.1 Late Pavment Charges
Interest charge: of 1.5% per month will be assessed on all unpaid balances more than
thirty days old.

492 Retum Check Charges

A return check charge of $25.00 will be assessed for checks retumned for insufficient
funds if the face value does not exceed $50.00, $30.00 if the face value does exceed
$50.00 but does not exceed $300.00, $40.00 if the face value exceeds $300.00 or 5%
of the value of the check, which ever is greater.

Restocation of Sarv

A reconnection fee of $25.00 per occurrence s charged when service is re-established for
customers who had been disconnected for non-payment.

Issued: October 21,1998

By:

Effective:

Gail E. Granton, Vice President
International Exchange Communications, Inc. d/b/a IE Comm

533 Airport Boulevard, Sulte 505
Burlingame, CA 94010




	January No. - 5067
	January No. - 5068
	January No. - 5069
	January No. - 5070
	January No. - 5071
	January No. - 5072
	January No. - 5073
	January No. - 5074
	January No. - 5075
	January No. - 5076
	January No. - 5077
	January No. - 5078
	January No. - 5079
	January No. - 5080
	January No. - 5081
	January No. - 5082
	January No. - 5083
	January No. - 5084
	January No. - 5085
	January No. - 5086
	January No. - 5087
	January No. - 5088
	January No. - 5089
	January No. - 5090
	January No. - 5091
	January No. - 5092
	January No. - 5093
	January No. - 5094
	January No. - 5095
	January No. - 5096
	January No. - 5097
	January No. - 5098
	January No. - 5099
	January No. - 5100
	January No. - 5101
	January No. - 5102
	January No. - 5103
	January No. - 5104
	January No. - 5105
	January No. - 5106
	January No. - 5107
	January No. - 5108
	January No. - 5109
	January No. - 5110
	January No. - 5111
	January No. - 5112
	January No. - 5113
	January No. - 5114
	January No. - 5115
	January No. - 5116
	January No. - 5117
	January No. - 5118
	January No. - 5119
	January No. - 5120
	January No. - 5121
	January No. - 5122
	January No. - 5123
	January No. - 5124
	January No. - 5125
	January No. - 5126
	January No. - 5127
	January No. - 5128
	January No. - 5129
	January No. - 5130
	January No. - 5131
	January No. - 5132
	January No. - 5133
	January No. - 5134
	January No. - 5135
	January No. - 5136
	January No. - 5137
	January No. - 5138
	January No. - 5139
	January No. - 5140
	January No. - 5141
	January No. - 5142
	January No. - 5143
	January No. - 5144
	January No. - 5145
	January No. - 5146
	January No. - 5147
	January No. - 5148
	January No. - 5149
	January No. - 5150
	January No. - 5151
	January No. - 5152
	January No. - 5153
	January No. - 5154
	January No. - 5155
	January No. - 5156
	January No. - 5157
	January No. - 5158
	January No. - 5159
	January No. - 5160
	January No. - 5161
	January No. - 5162
	January No. - 5163
	January No. - 5164
	January No. - 5165
	January No. - 5166
	January No. - 5167
	January No. - 5168
	January No. - 5169
	January No. - 5170
	January No. - 5171
	January No. - 5172
	January No. - 5173
	January No. - 5174
	January No. - 5175
	January No. - 5176
	January No. - 5177
	January No. - 5178
	January No. - 5179
	January No. - 5180
	January No. - 5181
	January No. - 5182
	January No. - 5183
	January No. - 5184
	January No. - 5185
	January No. - 5186
	January No. - 5187
	January No. - 5188
	January No. - 5189
	January No. - 5190
	January No. - 5191
	January No. - 5192
	January No. - 5193
	January No. - 5194
	January No. - 5195
	January No. - 5198
	January No. - 5199



